
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the meeting. 
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
MARCH 4, 2024 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 
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The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

In this packet, you will find the agenda for the City Council meeting. To help facilitate an informed 
discussion, the packet provides you with agenda items and additional details. The packet also 
contains recommended courses of action for your consideration and seeks to aid you in adopting 
sound policy decisions for the City of Troy. 

This comprehensive agenda has been put together through the collaborative efforts of 
management and staff members. We have made all attempts to obtain accurate supporting 
information. It is the result of many meetings and much deliberation, and I would like to thank the 
staff for their efforts. 

If you need any further information, staff is always available to provide more information and 
answer questions that may arise. You can contact me at CityManager@troymi.gov or 
248.524.3330 with questions. 

Respectfully, 

Mark F. Miller, 
City Manager 

mailto:CityManager@troymi.gov




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
March 4, 2024 – 7:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 

Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3316

View the Meeting Live at: www.troymi.gov/webcast 
or on Local Access Cable Channels 

(WOW – Ch 10, Comcast – Ch 17, AT&T – Ch 99) 

INVOCATION: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Proclamation to Celebrate the Larson Middle School All-Girls Robotics Team Girl
Botz 22918 (Presented by: Mayor Ethan Baker) 1 

C-2 Proclamation to Celebrate Troy Residents Halo Caezo, Kyle Winnie, Viktoria
Chernolutskiy, and Sophia Derocha on Their Exceptional Accomplishments in the 
Sport of Taekwondo (Presented by: Mayor Ethan Baker) 1 

C-3 Troy Youth Assistance Annual Report (Presented by: Shari Pawlus and Karl
Schmidt, Troy Youth Assistance) 1 

C-4 Global Troy Advisory Committee Report – Statement Regarding Global Conflicts
(Presented by:  Nasiha Mohideen and Edward Chezick) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 No Public Hearings Requested 2 

http://www.troymi.gov/webcast


 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND 
BUSINESSES: 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – None 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 
Development Authority, Global Troy Advisory Committee, Local Development 
Finance Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, 
Traffic Committee 3 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 8 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 9 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 9 

a) Special City Council Minutes-Draft – February 19, 2024 ...................................... 9 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 19, 2024 ................................................... 9 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 9 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 23-07 – 
Elliott Water Main Replacement ............................................................................ 9 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Award to Low Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Transit Mixed Concrete ............................................................... 9 



 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Community 
Planning Services ............................................................................................... 10 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Extended Purchasing 
Contract – Pump Replacement at Troy Community Center Pool........................ 10 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative – 
2024 Sewer Root Treatment............................................................................... 11 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Tuscan 
Villas Lot Split – Project No. 22.914.3 11 

J-6 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2023 11 

J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – February 21, 2024 12 

J-8 Request to Grant an Underground Utility Easement Over a City Owned Property to 
DTE Electric Company, Sidwell #88-20-22-301-011 12 

J-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Shekhor Deb, Sidwell 
#88-20-12-426-024 13 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time):  None Submitted 13 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 13 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND 
BUSINESSES: 13 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

N-1 No Council Referrals Submitted 13 

O. REPORTS: 13 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 



 

a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final – December 7, 2023 ...................... 13 
b) Traffic Committee-Final – January 17, 2024 ....................................................... 13 

O-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Troy Historical Society Annual Report for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 and 
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 ............................................. 13 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation: 14 

a) To Recreation Staff from Janet Gole .................................................................. 14 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 14 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

P-1  No Council Comments Submitted 14 

Q. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT 
FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 14 

R. CLOSED SESSION 14 

R-1 No Closed Session 14 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 14 

2024 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

March 4, 2024 City Council Orientation ................................................................. 15 
March 13, 2024 City Manager Recruitment ........................................................... 15 
April 1, 2024 City Attorney Evaluation .................................................................... 15 
April 6, 2024 City Manager Recruitment Interviews ............................................... 15 
April 8, 2024 City Council Orientation .................................................................... 15 
April 15, 2024 Special Budget Study Meeting ........................................................ 15 
April 17, 2024 Special Budget Study Meeting (as needed) .................................... 15 

2024 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

March 4, 2024 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 
March 18, 2024 Regular Meeting ........................................................................... 15 
April 8, 2024 Regular Meeting ............................................................................... 15 
April 29, 2024 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 
May 13, 2024 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 
May 20, 2024 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 
June 10, 2024 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 
June 24, 2024 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 



 

July 8, 2024 Regular Meeting ................................................................................ 15 
July 22, 2024 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 
August 12, 2024 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 15 
August 26, 2024 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 15 
September 16, 2024 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 15 
September 30, 2024 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 15 
October 14, 2024 Regular Meeting ........................................................................ 15 
October 28, 2024 Regular Meeting ........................................................................ 15 
November 11, 2024 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 15 
November 25, 2024 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 15 
December 9, 2024 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 15 
December 16, 2024 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 15 
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INVOCATION:   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

A. CALL TO ORDER:

B. ROLL CALL:
a) Mayor Ethan Baker

Theresa Brooks
Rebecca A. Chamberlain-Creanga
Hirak Chanda
Mark Gunn
David Hamilton
Ellen Hodorek

Excuse Absent Council Members: 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03- 
Moved by    
Seconded by    

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of __________ at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of March 4, 2024, due to __________. 

Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
C-1 Proclamation to Celebrate the Larson Middle School All-Girls Robotics Team Girl

Botz 22918 (Presented by: Mayor Ethan Baker) 

C-2 Proclamation to Celebrate Troy Residents Halo Caezo, Kyle Winnie, Viktoria
Chernolutskiy, and Sophia Derocha on Their Exceptional Accomplishments in the 
Sport of Taekwondo (Presented by: Mayor Ethan Baker) 

C-3 Troy Youth Assistance Annual Report (Presented by: Shari Pawlus and Karl
Schmidt, Troy Youth Assistance) 

C-4 Global Troy Advisory Committee Report – Statement Regarding Global Conflicts 
(Presented by: Nasiha Mohideen and Edward Chezick) 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
D-1 No Carryover Items
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E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
E-1 No Public Hearings Requested

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not 
resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.  

• Petitioners of items that are included in the pre-printed agenda booklet shall be given a
fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with the majority consent of City
Council.

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item.

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, does not have the right to engage in
discussion or debate with City Council during the Public Comment portions of the meeting.

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide
his or her name. If the speaker is addressing an item(s) that appears on the pre-printed
agenda, then the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be
addressed.

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a consensus of the City Council.
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated

should initiate the scheduling of a special meeting for that specific purpose.

Prior to Public Comment, the Mayor may provide a verbal notification of the rules of decorum 
for City Council meetings or refer to the pre-printed agenda booklet, which will include the 
following language, as approved by City Council:  

Please direct your comments to the City Council as a whole rather than to any individual.  
Please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about any individual 
or group.  If you do, there may be immediate consequences, including being muted and having 
your comments omitted from any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Please abide by these rules in 
order to minimize the possibility of disrupting the meeting. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC
COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND
BUSINESSES:
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H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items  
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 

Development Authority, Global Troy Advisory Committee, Local Development 
Finance Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, 
Traffic Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First 
Name 

App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Baker Ethan  Mayor per 
State Statute At Large  

Blair Timothy 6/17/2017 9/30/2027 In District  
Keisling Laurence 9/11/2022 9/30/2024 At Large  
Kiriluk Alan 9/29/2022 9/30/2024 In District  
Knollenberg Martin 6/28/2021 9/30/2027 In District  
Koza Kenny 9/18/2019 9/30/2025 In District  
Kuppa Padma  9/30/2026 At Large  
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MacLeish Daniel 6/28/2023 9/30/2025 In District  
Reschke Ernest 7/5/2024 9/30/2026 At Large  

Richards Jr. John 2/13/2025 9/30/2026 Resident 
Member  

Stone David 3/11/2023 9/30/2027 In District  
Tomcsik-Husak Tara 9/22/2022 9/30/2024 In District  

Vacancy   9/30/2024 In District Cheryl Bush resigned 
9/22/21 

 

 
Nominations to the Downtown Development Authority: 
 
Unexpired Term Expiring: 
9/30/2024  In District 
 Term currently held by: Vacancy-Cheryl Bush resigned 9/22/21 
  
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Aceves Jr. Alfonso 12/11/2025 At Large  
Battle Timothy 10/28/2024 At Large  
Beyer Joseph 12/13/2024 In District  
Comiskey Ann 1/20/2026 At Large  
Dicker Susanne F. 1/3/2025 At Large  
Faiz Iqbal 6/7/2025 At Large  
Kenkre Mahendra 1/19/2025 At Large  
Kornacki Rosemary 2/24/2025 At Large Brownfield Redev Auth exp 4/30/26 
Pettinato Jillian 11/27/2025 At Large  
Thattai Govindrajan 5/20/2024 At Large  
von Oeyen Schuyler 7/20/2024 At Large  

 

 
 

Global Troy Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Mayor 
12 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Baker Ethan  City Council 
Term Expiration  

Bica-Grodsky Lisa 9/23/2022 10/30/2026  
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Burrus MiVida 7/15/2018 10/30/2025  
Cheriguene Sadia 10/20/2024 10/30/2026  
Chezick Edward 12/20/2024 10/30/2025  
Cicchini Philippe 4/13/2023 10/30/2026  
Fakhoury Awni 9/28/2023 10/30/2024  
Mohideen Syeda 9/28/2023 10/30/2024  
Natcheva Daniela 11/8/2021 10/30/2025  
Noguez-Ortiz Carolina 12/20/2024 10/30/2025  
Swaminathan Sharanya  7/31/2023 Student - Graduated 2023 
Zhou Yudong 12/7/2024 10/30/2025  

 

 
Nominations to the Global Troy Advisory Authority: 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2024  
 Term currently held by: Sharanya Swaminathan (graduated) 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Comiskey Ann M. 12/22/2024  
Dicker Susanne Forbes 1/3/2025  
Emerson Rosalyn 7/20/2024  
Gunasekar Vinaya 1/8/2026  
Haight Michelle 10/8/2025  
Kadoura Lailas M 9/24/2024  
Lee Seojin Sarah 4/21/2025 Student - Graduates 2026 
McGee Timothy 12/19/2024 HDC exp 5/15/2024 
Mehta Susheilla 1/20/2025  
Wit Callie 4/22/2024  

 

 
 

Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor 
5 Regular Members 

Staggered 4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Bachert Sandra 11/18/2023 6/30/2027 Resident 
Member  
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Baker Ethan  City Council 
Term 

Alternate; 
City Council 

City Council exp. 11/2027; 
DDA; GTAC, LDFA 

Hodorek Ellen  City Council 
Term 

Alternate; 
City Council City Council exp 11/2025 

Rosenblum Anthony 11/10/2024 6/30/2026 Resident 
Member  

Schmitz Jim 9/14/2024 6/30/2024 Resident 
Member  

Smieliauskas Fabrice 9/7/2025 6/30/2024 Resident 
Member  

Starks Louis   
Oakland 
County 

Designee 
 

Vacancy   6/30/2027 Resident 
Member 

Nickolas Vitale resigned 
7/17/21 (Term expired 
6/30/2023) 

 

 
Nominations to the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA): 
 
Term Expires: 6/30/2027  Resident Member 
 Term currently held by: Vacant – N. Vitale resigned 7/17/21 
 
Interested Applicants: 
 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Battle Timothy 10/28/2024  
Christiansen Dale 11/22/2024  
Faiz Iqbal 6/7/2025  
Mudaliar Vinodh Kumar 3/2/2024  
Vassallo Joseph 12/20/2024 Brownfield Redev Auth exp 4/30/24 

 

 
Yes:       
No:        
 
b) City Council Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
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Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 3 

Bluhm Annalisa Esposito 10/2/2025 1/31/2024  
Comiskey Ann 1/20/2026 1/31/2024  
Ehlert Max 1/8/2023 1/31/2024  
Giorgi Lynn  12/31/2099  
Gorcyca David 12/4/2021 1/31/2026  
Haight David 4/11/2024 1/31/2025  
Jones Kelly 12/20/2024 1/31/2026  
Martin Matthew 5/11/2024 1/31/2025 Requests Reappointment 

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027  
 Term currently held by: Analisa Bluhm 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027  
 Term currently held by: Ann Comiskey 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027  
 Term currently held by: Max Ehlert 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Kaltsounis Andrew 8/28/2025  

 

 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Finlay G. Scott  
Ex-Officio 
Member   
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Hullinger Peter  
Ex-Officio 
Member   

Kenkre Shama 8/23/2024 1/31/2025   
Kilmer Richard 12/21/2024 1/31/2026   

Nastasi Frank  
Ex-Officio 
Member   

Nurak Cindy 1/28/2024 1/31/2025   

Petrulis Al 2/10/2025 1/31/2026 
ACAB exp 
9/30/2024  

Swaminathan Abi 9/2/2025 1/31/2027   
Wilsher Cynthia 2/4/2023 1/31/2024  No Reappointment 

Zhou Angela 9/18/2025 7/31/2024 
Student - 
Graduates 2025  

Ziegenfelder Peter 12/14/2024 1/31/2026   
 

 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027  
 Term currently held by: Cynthia Wilsher – No Reappointment 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Chambers Barbara 1/18/2025  
Christiansen Dale 11/22/2024  
Eisenbacher David 4/6/2024 ZBA exp 4/30/2025 
Gill Jasper 1/10/2024  
Jeeda Swathi 7/2/2025 GRADUATES 2026 
Swaminathan Abi 9/2/2025  
Tadepalli Hemanth 11/7/2025  

 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
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Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Special City Council Minutes-Draft – February 19, 2024 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 19, 2024 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 23-07 – Elliott 

Water Main Replacement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 23-07, Elliott Water Main 
Replacement, to F.D.M. Contracting, Inc., 49156 Van Dyke, Shelby Twp., MI 48317, for their 
low base bid of $1,879,258.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Award to Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – 

Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
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RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide Transit 
Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidder meeting 
specifications; Daytona Redi-Mix of Shelby Township, MI, as the primary supplier and Superior 
Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI, as the secondary supplier as per the unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened February 15, 2024, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, to be ordered on an as-needed basis; contracts expiring 
April 30, 2026. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Community 

Planning Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On February 22, 2021, Troy City Council awarded a three (3) year contract to 
provide Community Planning and Related Services for the City of Troy to the best value bidder, 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., with the option to renew for two (2) additional years; contract 
expiring on March 31, 2024.  (Resolution #2021-02-027); and, 
 
WHEREAS The City of Troy determined that Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. successfully 
provided Community Planning and Related Services to the City as per all terms and conditions 
of the existing contract; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. offered to renew their contract for two (2) years 
under the same terms and conditions as the 2021 contract; and, 
 
WHEREAS The City of Troy has determined that Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. continues 
to successfully provide Community Planning and Related Services to the City as per all terms 
and conditions of the existing contract and has offered to exercise the two-year renewal option; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be in 
City’s best interest to APPROVE the option to exercise the two-year renewal with the contract 
expiring March 31, 2026 upon mutual consent of both parties and successful performance of 
the contract with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. for Community Planning and Related 
Services under the same terms and conditions of SOQ-COT 21-16, the contract dated April 1, 
2021, the Agreement Extension provided by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. dated January 
30, 2024 and revised Attachment 1; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents and all other specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract 

– Pump Replacement at Troy Community Center Pool 
 
Suggested Resolution 
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Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to Limbach, Inc. of Pontiac, 
MI for replacement of the three pumps at the Troy Community Center Pool for an estimated 
cost of $94,991, as detailed in the proposal and as per the Oakland County Extended 
Purchasing Contract #009746, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting; not to exceed budgetary limitations.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative – 2024 

Sewer Root Treatment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That in the best interest of the City, Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract 
to Duke’s, 1020 Hiawatha Blvd., West, Syracuse, NY 13204, to furnish all labor, materials and 
equipment to provide sewer root treatment for an estimated cost of $145,939.08 at the prices 
detailed in the proposal and per the HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative Contract #SC01-21, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; not to exceed 
budgetary limitations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Tuscan 

Villas Lot Split – Project No. 22.914.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mr. Frank Mancini 
for the installation of: Water Main, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, Concrete Pavement & 
Sidewalk, and Rain Garden, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2023 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the state of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and, 
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WHEREAS, The centerline of said street is described as: 
 
(Kohli Drive) Part of the Southeast ¼ of Section 27, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, 
Oakland County, Michigan.  The centerline of road being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the South ¼ Corner of said Section 27; thence South 89 degrees 36 minutes 
29 seconds East, along the East and West ¼ Line of said Section 27, 1265.28 feet and North 
12 degrees 17 minutes 04 seconds East 1132.75 feet and South 77 degrees 42 minutes 56 
seconds East 50.00 feet to the centerline of Rochester Road and the point of beginning of the 
centerline of Kohli; thence North 77 degrees 42 minutes 56 seconds West 99.62 feet; thence on 
a curve to the right having a radius of 50.50 feet, a length of 68.73 feet, and a chord bearing 
and distance of North 38 degrees 43 minutes 23 seconds West 63.55 feet; thence North 00 
degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds East 670.10 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius 
of 39.00 feet, a length of 61.26 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 15 
minutes 20 seconds East 55.15 feet; thence South 89 degrees 45 minutes 21 seconds East 
147.24 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius of 230.00 feet, a length of 50.93 feet, 
and a chord bearing and distance of South 83 degrees 24 minutes 41 seconds East 50.83 feet; 
thence South 77 degrees 04 minutes 00 seconds East 63.95 feet to the centerline of Rochester 
Road and the point of ending of said road. Said centerline of road is 1,161.83 feet in length 
more or less. 
 
WHEREAS, The above said street is located within the City of Troy; right of way is under the 
control of the City of Troy; said street is public street and is for public street purposes and was 
open to the public prior to December 31, 2023; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the following non-
platted street: Kohli Drive into the City of Troy local street system. 
 
J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – February 21, 2024 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
4. Request for Traffic Control – Hearthside Drive & Country Ridge Drive   
 
RESOLVED, That the Country Ridge Drive Approach at Hearthside Drive be MODIFIED from 
UNCONTROLLED, to STOP CONTROLLED. 
 
J-8 Request to Grant an Underground Utility Easement Over a City Owned Property to 

DTE Electric Company, Sidwell #88-20-22-301-011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS an underground easement to DTE 
Electric Company over the City of Troy owned property identified by Sidwell #88-20-22-301-
011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DIRECTS the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the easement document on behalf of the City.   
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J-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Shekhor Deb, Sidwell #88-

20-12-426-024 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2024-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS a permanent easement for storm sewers and 
surface drainage from Shekhor Deb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-12-426-024. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
permanent easement with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:  

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES:  

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by the Mayor and City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

N-1 No Council Referrals Submitted 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final – December 7, 2023 
b) Traffic Committee-Final – January 17, 2024  
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Troy Historical Society Annual Report for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 and Financial 

Statements for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 
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O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Recreation Staff from Janet Gole 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
P-1  No Council Comments Submitted 
 

Q. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 
TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION 
R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark F. Miller 
City Manager  
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2024 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

March 4, 2024 ....................................................................................... City Council Orientation 
March 13, 2024 ................................................................................. City Manager Recruitment 
April 1, 2024 ......................................................................................... City Attorney Evaluation 
April 6, 2024 ..................................................................... City Manager Recruitment Interviews 
April 8, 2024 .......................................................................................... City Council Orientation 
April 15, 2024 ............................................................................. Special Budget Study Meeting 
April 17, 2024 ......................................................... Special Budget Study Meeting (as needed) 

 
 

2024 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
March 4, 2024 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
March 18, 2024 ................................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
April 8, 2024 ..................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
April 29, 2024 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 13, 2024 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 20, 2024 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
June 10, 2024 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2024 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
July 8, 2024 ...................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
July 22, 2024 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 12, 2024 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 26, 2024 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
September 16, 2024 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
September 30, 2024 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
October 14, 2024 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2024 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
November 11, 2024 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
November 25, 2024 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 9, 2024 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 16, 2024 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



PROCLAMATION TO CELEBRATE 
THE LARSON MIDDLE SCHOOL 

ALL-GIRLS ROBOTICS TEAM GIRL BOTZ 22918 
 
WHEREAS, The Girl Botz, Team 22918, an all-girls robotics team from Larson Middle School finished their first year 
with a trip to the state championships. They advanced to the Michigan FIRST Tech Challenge Robotics State 
Championship at Macomb Community College, December 8-10, 2023. FIRST stands for “For Inspiration and 
Recognition of Science and Technology;” and 
 
WHEREAS, The Girl Botz Team 22918 members are eighth graders Ella Bunao, Emmelyn Lauder, and Christel 
Mathew; and sixth graders Keerthana Chandra, Jianna Cruz, Eliza Debusschere, Varna Jayaraman, Hanuel Kim, 
Ishita Pedapati, and Ashleysha Thakare; and 
 
WHEREAS, One of nine FTC Robotics teams from Larson Middle School, the Girl Botz Team distinguished 
themselves by winning several high-profile awards this season. One was the Inspire Award, earned at the Oakland 
County Competitive Robotics Association regional championship at Pontiac International Technology Academy on 
December 2, 2023. The Inspire Award is the highest robotics award, given to a team that best embodies the ideals of 
FIRST; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Girl Botz Team also won one of the highest honors at the State Championship called the Motivate 
Award, for the team that best made FIRST known in the community. It involves bringing FIRST and STEM awareness 
to the young, schools, communities, and local businesses and informing them about the ideals and mission of FIRST, 
the Team really makes an effort to collaborate and work with the parents on the team. Nine awards overall are given 
out during tournaments, so winning these awards proves that they are not only one of the top contending teams but 
the most well-rounded team; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mentor Judy Bunao also won the Compass Award for her tireless leadership and volunteerism. As a 
mentor she has consistently been a compass through creativity and mentorship. With insight and dedication, Judy 
has steered the team through the challenges of technology with brilliance and grace. The Compass Award sets its 
course for a mentor who’s not just about bots but about building futures;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy hereby congratulate 
Girl Botz Team Members Ella Bunao, Emmelyn Lauder, Christel Mathew, Keerthana Chandra, Jianna Cruz, Eliza 
Debusschere, Varna Jayaraman, Hanuel Kim, Ishita Pedapati, Ashleysha Thakare, and Mentor/Coach Judy Bunao 
for working tirelessly to excel in the field of Robotics, bringing pride and positive recognition to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy invite all residents to celebrate The 
Girl Botz, Team 22918’s achievements, wish them much success in all future endeavors, and thank them for being 
great role models for our community and exceptional advocates for the field of Robotics.  
 
Presented this 4th day of March 2024 
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PROCLAMATION TO CELEBRATE TROY RESIDENTS  
HALO CAEZO, KYLE WINNIE, VIKTORIA CHERNOLUTSKIY, AND SOPHIA DEROCHA  

ON THEIR EXCEPTIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN THE SPORT OF TAEKWONDO 
 

WHEREAS, The Taekwondo community in the United States is abuzz with excitement as four outstanding athletes emerge 
as frontrunners in their groups, positioning themselves as top contenders on the national stage; and 
 

WHEREAS, Halo Caezo, National Athlete of the Year and a freshman at Troy High School, is a force to be reckoned with. 
Ranked number one in North and South America, she clinched victory at the prestigious Pan American Series Competition 
in Costa Rica, securing a gold medal. Not only is she a back-to-back member of the USA National Team, but she will also 
represent our nation at the upcoming event in Mexico, showcasing her exceptional skills once again on an international 
stage; and 
 

WHEREAS, Joining Halo in Mexico is fellow national team member Kyle Winnie, ranked number one in the nation, whose 
remarkable talent and dedication have earned him a spot among the country's elite Taekwondo athletes. Together, they 
aim to demonstrate the strength and prowess of Everest Taekwondo on the global stage. Kyle is a sixth grader at Parkway 
Christian School; and 
 

WHEREAS, Viktoria Chernolutskiy's meteoric rise to prominence within the Taekwondo community is nothing short of 
remarkable. Securing her place on the 2024 USA National Team with a stunning victory at the Team Trials, she is poised 
to represent the USA at the Junior World Taekwondo Championship in Korea later this year. As a testament to her 
exceptional skills and unwavering determination, the junior at Troy’s International Academy, Viktoria not only qualified for 
the World Taekwondo Championships, but also made history as the first junior (15-17-year-old age bracket) in the State of 
Michigan to achieve this prestigious milestone; and 
 

WHEREAS, To showcase her dominance in the sport, Sophia Derocha, an eighth grader at Larson Middle School, hailed 
as the 2023 USA National Champion in the Cadet +58kg division. Her triumph at the national level underscores her talent 
and potential as she continues to excel on her Taekwondo journey; and 
 

WHEREAS, Adding to the prestige of the team is Anmol Gorkhali, 2023 National Coach of the Year, current AAU National 
Team Coach, and the youngest in the history of Taekwondo in the USA. His guidance and leadership will undoubtedly play 
a crucial role as the team heads to Mexico to compete against the best in the world; and 
 

WHEREAS, As these four exceptional athletes gear up to represent the United States on the international stage, they 
embody the spirit of excellence and determination that defines American Taekwondo. Their achievements serve as 
inspiration to aspiring athletes nationwide, highlighting the boundless possibilities that await those who dare to dream and 
strive for greatness;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy hereby congratulate Halo 
Caezo, Kyle Winnie, Viktoria Chernolutskiy, and Sophia Derocha for working tirelessly to excel in the sport of 
Taekwondo, bringing pride and positive recognition to the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy invite all residents to celebrate Halo 
Caezo, Kyle Winnie, Viktoria Chernolutskiy, and Sophia Derocha’s achievements; wish them much success in all future 
endeavors; and thank them for being a great role model for our community and exceptional advocate for the sport of 
Taekwondo.  
 

Presented this 4th day of March 2024 
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TYA Youth-at-a-glance 

TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

A message from our co-chairs
In the vibrant heart of our city, Troy Youth Assistance 
serves as a dynamic force, tirelessly dedicated to the 
protection and advancement of at-risk youth. Our 
mission, deeply rooted in the prevention of juvenile 
delinquency, child neglect, and abuse, thrives on active 
community involvement and comprehensive family 
education programs.

As we navigate the post-pandemic landscape, Troy 
Youth Assistance remains agile, continually adapting to 
meet the evolving needs of our community. In response 
to shifting family dynamics and an increased prevalence 
of youth mental health issues, we stand resolute, 
offering support through family education, grants, and 
essential services.

Our Boost Grants initiative, emblematic of our steadfast 
commitment, has empowered two deserving students to 
surmount obstacles on their journey toward academic 
and professional success. These grants embody our 
unwavering dedication to ensuring that every student, 
regardless of obstacles, can access the opportunities 
that pave the way for a brighter future.

Troy Youth Assistance continues to actively explore how 
our resources can impact Troy students and their 
families, as evidenced by our strategic realignment 
efforts this year. As an organization, we are resolutely 
committed to providing opportunities for students who 
may not traditionally have access to them. This 
commitment extends to our dedication to family 
education, where we strive to break down barriers by 
creating podcasts that enable families to access our 
educational events without the need for sitters.

As we proudly present the 2022-2023 Annual Report, we 
invite you to delve into a snapshot of the pivotal 
functions Troy Youth Assistance provides across our 
community. This report reflects our commitment to 
transparency and accountability, showcasing the 
tangible impact of our collective efforts.

On behalf of the entire Troy Youth Assistance family, we 
extend heartfelt gratitude for the unwavering support 
from our Troy community. Your commitment empowers 
us to persist in our mission of creating a brighter future 
for our at-risk youth. Together, we build resilience, 
foster growth, and pave the way for a stronger and more 
inclusive community. Thank you for being an integral 
part of our inspiring journey.

Shari Pawlus and Stephan Henning, Co-Chairpersons

troy youth and families  
referred to us this year by... 93
The Troy School District

police
parents/guardians
Oakland County Prosecutor

Child Protective Services

72
11

5
3
2

prevention services 50
school incorrigibility18

8 truancy

top 3 reasons for referrals

Other reasons for referrals included destruction of
property substance use, theft, assault, educational
neglect, home incorrigibility and indecent exposure

High School46%
Elementary School28%
Middle School23%
Preschool 3%
Male61%

32% Female
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Our flight path
Because incoming revenue for TYA continues to be outpaced by outgoing needs, the Executive Committee
and Board of Directors dedicated significant time throughout the 2022-23 fiscal year to rejuvenate our
mission and reassess all of our existing services as an agency. 

There has not been a systematic review of our functions in the past 20 years. Our goal in the review was to
recognize that our limited resources need to be applied only to activities with a direct, measurable impact
on our target youth population. Initial discussions identified functions the entire organization agrees are of
high impact value. Our 2023-24 fiscal year budget then only allocated funds for those functions; the
remaining functions have been put on hold while we continue to work through a systematic review of their
appropriateness and efficacy over the next few months. We anticipate that some functions may undergo
significant alterations, while others may be discontinued indefinitely.

Our goal is to have reviewed and adjusted all functions by the close of this fiscal year, then reflect those
adjustments in our 2024-25 fiscal budget. We think this is one way we can better align and prioritize our
services to function efficiently within our available income.  We will share service adjustments with
stakeholders in the coming months once all changes have been implemented.

“Through our process of developing goals and
objectives for families, children and parents can learn
different ways to deal with problematic behaviors at
home, school, and in the community.”

-Mike Caminidi, TYA Caseworker



supporting camp and skill building activities

in emergency funds for families in need

supporting in-school youth 
development activities

supporting community and individual actions,
in addition to primary sponsorship$5631

$3850
$1000

$900

18 Children attended camp or skill-building
activities, including... 

8 Family education opportunities, attended by... 
Students
Parents

75
63

11 court actions diverted

Our year by the numbers

Tutoring
Soccer
Troy Community Coalition
Summer Program
Art classes
TSD summer math classes
TSD summer preschool 
Summer camp

Topics included... 
Girls Stand Strong
Overcoming Frustration and Anger
Parenting Beyond Behavior
Youth Yoga
Understanding Vaping and Marijuana to
Protect Youth Health



A word from TYA Caseworker Mike Caminidi
"As my first year of being the TYA Caseworker comes to a close, I’ve been
reflecting on how grateful I am to be part of the Troy Community. I love
working in a community that values education, diversity, and integrity. I
have met so many amazing parents, teachers, students, support staff,
therapists, volunteers and other professionals who have helped me grow
into my role. The last several years have brought so many challenges to
our families. I am hopeful that my role as Caseworker helps alleviate some
pressures that our families are facing. It is such a gift to work with
students and parents who are smart, dynamic, and fun. Through our
process of developing goals and objectives for families, children and
parents can learn different ways to deal with problematic behaviors at
home, school, and in the community."  

You can make a difference
Children mentored 
through tYA this year0

One of the most powerful ways TYA can make a difference for children and families in our community is through our mentorship program.
People from all walks of life can form relationships with Troy children of all ages who might benefit from an additional guiding presence. TYA
mentors help children build positive connections with others, learn how to express themselves in a healthy and productive way, develop new
interests, improve their performance in school and more! At the moment TYA is in dire need of volunteer mentors. During this program year
TYA did not mentor any children because of this shortage. You do not need to have experience parenting, any specific level of education, or a
connection to the Troy School District to make a difference in the life of a child through TYA. Contact us today for more information,
pressure free. You can help a child take flight! 

4420 Livernois Road Troy, Michigan 48098 (248) 823-5095 TroyYouthAssistance@troy.k12.mi.us

Executive committee

EmiNa Alic
Treasurer

Shari PawlUs 
Co-Chair

Karl Schmidt
ADvisor

John Julian
vice chair

StephAn Henning
Co-chair

Mike Caminidi
Caseworker
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Global Troy Advisory Committee 

Statement Regarding Global Conflicts  

February 23, 2024 

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Members, 

The Global Troy Advisory seeks to increase the City of Troy’s cultural competence through cultural knowledge, 
awareness and sensitivity, to assist with the promotion of cultural diversity and inclusion, and to enhance 
community connections. 

Members of the Global Troy Advisory Committee hope that the Troy City Council can affirm the following 
statement regarding global conflicts and actions that promote peace and harmony through the citizenry of the 
City of Troy. 

In recognition that the City of Troy, Michigan, is one of the most diverse cities in the United States 
of America, Troy is committed to the well-being of its residents, maintaining a vibrant, safe, and 
diverse community, and firmly condemns violence against civilians of any background, faith, or 
ethnicity.  

Many of our Troy residents are being affected by the numerous armed conflicts in the world today, 
whether it is their families overseas who are in the middle of it or through social media coverage-
be it biased or unbiased from the ground- which is accessible almost instantaneously that can lead 
to a response that might not be based in facts.  Yet, there is the undisputed fact that in all conflicts 
there is always the loss of innocent civilian lives on both sides.  The tragic, unnecessary deaths of 
children, or the physical or emotional injuries that the children endure as a result of living in a 
conflict area on both sides is unacceptable to us.  

In promoting peace and harmony within our community, we encourage the Citizens of Troy to 
engage in at least one, if not all, of the following actions:  

1) To hold in their thoughts the safety of the innocent people that find themselves in the middle of
violence and hate;
2) To hold in their thoughts all injured by hate and violence;
3) To perform acts of kindness in all the places where life brings them promoting peace; and
4) To donate either their time or resources – or both- to charities that strive to spread peace or
work to ensure the protection of innocent people that find themselves in the middle of violence
and hate.

As there has been a rise of both Islamophobia and anti-Semitic actions throughout the country,  We 
ask all citizens to talk with and engage in conversations that will restore the bridges of friendship 
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Global Troy Advisory Committee 

that have been damaged by preconceived notions fed by news cycles and self-imposed echo 
chambers where only one-sided dialogue promotes an us-vs-them mindset.  

We hope that this statement will remind all the people in the City of Troy, Michigan, that they 
can make a difference for good when their actions promote good will and harmony.   The City of 
Troy can set an example for the State of Michigan by calling for peace and becoming a hope that 
spreads from one person to another, until all are affected for good. 

The Global Troy Advisory Committee will work diligently with the city government, community organizations, 
faith groups and ethnic communities to continue its efforts in making Troy a more welcoming, inclusive, and 
culturally competent community. 

Sincerely, 

Members of the Global Troy Advisory Committee 
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A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, February 19, 2024, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Baker called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a) Mayor Ethan Baker 

Theresa Brooks 
Rebecca A. Chamberlain-Creanga  
Hirak Chanda 
Mark Gunn 
David Hamilton 
Ellen Hodorek  

 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 

D. BUSINESS STATED IN THE SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE: 
D-1 Special Assessment Procedure 
 
City Manager Miller introduced the topic of the Special Assessment Procedures. 
 
Assistant City Manager Schubert discussed the background and current policy for the City of 
Troy’s Special Assessment Procedures. 
 
There was a consensus of City Council to direct City Administration to prepare an ordinance 
amendment which includes 75% support from the residents on the unpaved road based on 
frontage, the resident portion being approximately 50% based on linear feet of frontage, and an 
interest rate of 1% above the actual bond interest rate with a 20-year term. It was the 
consensus of City Council to have City Administration also look into programs that limit special 
assessments for residents with poverty level income.  
 

E. OTHER BUSINESS: 

F. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 6:55 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Ethan Baker 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC, MiPMC II 
City Clerk 
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Rev. Dr. Tara Gay from Big Beaver United Methodist Church performed the Invocation.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, February 19, 2024, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Baker called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a) Mayor Ethan Baker 

Theresa Brooks 
Rebecca A. Chamberlain-Creanga  
Hirak Chanda 
Mark Gunn 
David Hamilton 
Ellen Hodorek  

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Service Commendation – Deputy Fire Chief Paul Firth (Presented by: Mayor Ethan 

Baker) 
 
C-2 Service Commendation – Water & Sewer Operations Manager Paul Trosper 

(Presented by: Mayor Ethan Baker) 
 
C-3 Avondale Youth Assistance Annual Update (Presented by: Michael Kazyak, 

Chairman) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings Requested  
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Deborah Louzecky Commented on item I-5 Master Plan Adoption or Rejection 
Sheila Ienz-shomo Commented on item I-5 Master Plan Adoption or Rejection 

 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND 
BUSINESSES: 
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H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items  
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2024-02-032 
Moved by Hodorek 
Seconded by Hamilton 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members; 2 Alternates 
3 Year Term 

 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027 Barbara Chambers Alternate 
 Term currently held by: Barbara Chambers 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027 Jeffrey Forster Alternate 
 Term currently held by: Jeffrey Forster 
 

Yes All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council 

Nominations – None 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
 
b) City Council Nominations:  None 
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I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
I-4 Amendment to Chapter 98 - Criminal Code (Introduced by: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City 

Attorney) 
 
Resolution #2024-02-033 
Moved by Brooks 
Seconded by Chamberlain-Creanga 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ENACTS the Ordinance 
amending the provisions of Chapter 98 of the City Code as recommended by the City 
Attorney’s Office, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
I-5 Master Plan Adoption or Rejection (Introduced by: Brent Savidant, Community 

Development Director) 
 
Resolution B:  
 
Resolution #2024-02-034 
Moved by Baker 
Seconded by Hodorek 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has asserted the right to approve or reject the proposed master 
plan; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Troy City Council hereby REJECTS the proposed Master 
Plan pursuant to Section 43(4) of the Municipal Planning Enabling Act, PA 33 of 2008. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ADOPTS the following statement of its 
objections to the proposed Master Plan: 
 
Some developments in the Neighborhood Nodes have been controversial. Specifically, 
residents have opposed developments in Neighborhood Nodes F and L because they believe 
the developments incompatible with the abutting neighborhoods. Therefore, City Council 
OBJECTS to Neighborhood Node F (Crooks Road and Wattles Road) and Neighborhood Node 
L (Livernois Road and Square Lake Road) and REQUESTS the Planning Commission review 
them to determine whether they should remain in the Master Plan, be modified in some 
manner, or eliminated from the Master Plan. 
 
Yes All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
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The Meeting RECESSED at 9:04 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:10 PM. 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-1a 
Moved by Hamilton 
Seconded by Chanda 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-04b, which shall be CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 5, 2024 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-3 
 
a) Proclamation to Celebrate the Larson Middle School All-Girls Robotics Team Girl Botz 

22918 
b) Proclamation to Celebrate Troy Residents Halo Caezo, Kyle Winnie, Viktoria 

Chernolutskiy and Sophia Derocha on their Exceptional Accomplishments in the Sport of 
Taekwondo 

 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDEAL Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Police and DPW Fleet Vehicles 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-4a 
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RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase three (3) 2024 
Chevrolet Silverado Pickup Trucks and two (2) 2024 Chevrolet Blazer SUV’s from Berger 
Chevrolet of Grand Rapids, MI, as per the State of Michigan MiDEAL Cooperative Purchasing 
contract #071B7700177 for an estimated total cost of $207,321.00; not to exceed budgetary 
limitations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase (1) 2024 Ford Edge SUV, one (1) 2024 Ford Transit Passenger Van, two (2) 2024 
Ford Transit Cargo Vans, one (1) 2024 Ford Maverick Pickup Truck and one (1) 2024 Ford 
F250 Pickup Truck with Plow from Gorno Ford of Woodhaven, MI, as per the State of Michigan 
MiDEAL Cooperative Purchasing contract #071B7700181 for an estimated total cost of 
$293.306.00; not to exceed budgetary limitations. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract 

– City Hall East and West Storefront Door Replacements 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AWARDS a contract to National Restoration, of Milford, 
MI, for the City Hall East and West Storefront and Door Replacements for an estimated amount 
of $70,900 and a contingency of $3,100 as detailed in the attached proposal and per the 
Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract #006325; not to exceed budgetary limitations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
J-5 5310 SMART and City of Troy Vehicle Lease Agreement 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the agreement between the Suburban 
Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) and the City of Troy for the 5310 
Vehicle Lease Agreement, which will be used for the Troy RYDE transportation service, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the necessary documents; a copy of this 
agreement shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements from Gary Abitheira – 

Sidwell #88-20-27-432-022 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS two permanent easements for storm sewers 
and surface drainage, and sidewalks from Gary Abitheira, owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-27-432-022. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
permanent easements with Oakland County Register of Deeds; copies of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
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J-7 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) 
 
Resolution #2024-02-035-J-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment to renew the City of Troy’s 
membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2024, in the amount of 
$29,800; Funds are available in the 2024-2025 Police Department Operating Funds, 
Membership and Dues. 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract – 

Raintree and Firefighters Park Play Structure Replacements 
 
Resolution #2024-02-036 
Moved by Hodorek 
Seconded by Hamilton 
 
RESOLVED, That in the best interest of the City, Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the bid 
process and AWARDS contracts to We Build Fun of Allen, TX, for the Raintree and Firefighters 
Park Play Structure Replacements for an estimated cost of $444,858.49 as detailed in the 
attached quotes and per the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract #010521-LTS-3, 
copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; not to exceed 
budgetary limitations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
properly executed contract documents, insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:  

 
Howard Treado Commented on the need for continuous funding for parks 

improvements 
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Saba Maroof Commented on a previous proclamation passed by City Council 
regarding Ukraine 

Iffat Shaheen Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Taalia Azharuddin Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Sikandar Khatri Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Iba Najam Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Sana Chaker Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Hajra Ahmad Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Eshaal Qureshi Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Sahana Ahmed Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Fasahat Hamzavi Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Suraiya Essack Varachia Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Momena Rathur Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Mustafa Rasheed Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Qudsia Lone Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Zarif Ghazi Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Kira Taylorelms Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Abdualrahman Hamad Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Amina Ahmad Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

Belal Ahmed Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling 
for a ceasefire in Gaza 

 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES:  

Mayor Baker responded to Mr. Treado that City Council has never cut any pickleball item from 
the City Budget. 
 
Mayor Baker responded with an explanation of the intention of City Council proclamations, and 
commented on the comments made regarding a ceasefire resolution. 
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N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by the Mayor and City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

N-1 Council Referral From Council Member Chanda 
 
We have received a lot of input from residents about senior programs and senior services. I am 
asking my Council colleagues if we can get consensus for the City Administration to look into 
our senior programs and compare them with similar cities to understand where we are doing 
better and where we can improve. 
 
There was consensus of City Council to request that City Management to look into the topic 
presented in Council Member Chanda’s Referral. 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Second Quarter Financial Report for the Six Months Ended December 31, 2023 
b) Troy Fire Department 2023 Summary  

Noted and Filed 
 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
O-5 Oakland County Treasurer’s Office Foreclosure Prevention 

Noted and Filed 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
P-1  Mayor’s State of the City 2024 Announcement 
 
My fellow Troy City Council Members, City Manager Miller, and City Attorney Bluhm: 
 
I am excited to announce this year’s State of the City Address (“SOTC”) for the residents and 
businesses of Troy.  The 2024 SOTC will be in the evening on Wednesday, May 8, 2024, with 
an official start time and location to be determined. 
 
As it was the past three years, this will be a partnership between the City of Troy and the Troy 
Chamber of Commerce.  I have been working with Tara Tomcsik-Husak, President and CEO of 
the Troy Chamber and Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director for the City of Troy for the 
planning and execution of this community event.  It is my hope that you all will be able to attend 
in person again this year, and we will be including in-person invitations for the broader 
community. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 19, 2024 
 

 

- 9 - 

The SOTC will address this last year in the City of Troy, including our execution of the FY 
2023/24 budget, and will discuss the City’s plans for FY 2024/25.  It is my expectation that we 
will be on the precipice of approving our FY 2024/25 budget, which will give a good opportunity 
to discuss our upcoming priorities.   
 
Cindy, Tara, and I have already been working on the plans for this SOTC and we will ensure it 
is a great representation of our wonderful city.  I look forward to working with each of you to 
enhance the SOTC address and the presentation of our priorities.   
 

Q. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 
TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 
Rola Bazoun Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling for 

a ceasefire in Gaza 
Ian McClure Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling for 

a ceasefire in Gaza 
Monika Sipe Commented requesting City Council to save the trees in a wooded 

area 
Masud Hossain Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling for 

a ceasefire in Gaza 
Laila Balboul Commented that City Council needs to pass a resolution calling for 

a ceasefire in Gaza 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION 
R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 10:42 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Ethan Baker 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC, MiPMC II 
City Clerk 
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Date:  March 4, 2024 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager  

Robert C. Maleszyk, Chief Financial Officer 
  Dee Ann Irby, Controller 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
  Jason Schmidt, Water & Sewer Operations Manager 
  Emily Frontera, Purchasing Manager 
  G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
 Contract 23-07 – Elliott Water Main Replacement       
 
 
History 
 
The 8-inch diameter ductile and cast-iron water main located on the north side of Elliott Ave, from 
Minnesota Road to Dequindre Road in Section 36 is almost 40 years old and has exceeded its 
service life. This project will replace and upsize this water main to meet current size and fire flow 
standards while eliminating costly water main brakes which are common with older water mains. 
Work will include abandoning the 8-inch diameter water main on the above noted drive and installing 
a new 12-inch diameter water main.  In addition, this project will include the pavement rehabilitation of 
Elliott from Minnesota to Dequindre which includes milling (grinding off) the surface of the existing 
pavement and then placing a new asphalt pavement surface. Also included is complete removal and 
replacement of failed pavement areas and miscellaneous manhole repairs. This work is anticipated to 
start in April of 2024 and be completed by November 2024. 
 
Purchasing 
 
Bids were received and publicly read on February 21, 2024.  The low base bid of $1,879,258.00 was 
submitted by F.D.M. Contracting, Inc., 49156 Van Dyke, Shelby Twp., MI 48317 as shown on the 
attached bid tab.  Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with five (5) bidders responding.  
The award is contingent upon submission of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, 
insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
Financial 
 
Funding for this work is budgeted and available in the 2023-2024 Water Capital Fund; Project 
#2024C0075. Expenditures will be charged to Account # 537.555.972.235015. The budgeted amount 
includes funds for construction, inspection, testing and contingencies. 
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Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council award the Elliott Water Main Replacement contract to F.D.M. 
Contracting, Inc. 49156 Van Dyke, Shelby Twp., MI 48317, for their low bid of $1,879,258.00.   
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 15% 
of the original project cost due to unknown conflicts with existing underground utilities and 
underground conditions that may arise during construction. 
 
A copy of the bid tab and recommendation shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2023\23-07 - Elliott Water Main Replacement\Correspondence\Council\Bid Award.docx 



Bids Due:  February 21, 2024
Project No. 23.501.5

ELLIOTT WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

 Total Base Bid Amount 

1 F.D.M. Contracting, Inc. 1,879,258.00$                    

2 Major Contracting Group, Inc. 1,981,245.80$                    

3 Pamar Enterprises, Inc. 2,096,450.22$                    

4 Bidigare Contractors, Inc. 2,157,912.00$                    

5 C & P Construction Co. Inc. 2,349,261.00$                    

City of Troy
Oakland County, Michigan

BID TABULATION
CONTRACT 23-07

Prepared by: Emily Ause Page 1 2/22/2024
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Date:  February 23, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
  Dee Ann Irby, Controller 
                      Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 

Mike Verstraete, Streets Operations Manager 
  Emily Frontera, Purchasing Manager 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidders meeting Specifications – 

Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
 
History 
• Transit mix concrete is concrete mixed at a plant and brought to a job site by a concrete truck.  The 

Department of Public Works uses transit mixed concrete throughout the year for repairs to the City’s 
infrastructure, which includes sidewalks, curbs, and roads. 

• The City of Troy uses the most current mix design to ensure Alkali Silica Reactivity (ASR) is avoided 
in all new concrete placed. 

• Transit mixed concrete is purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year. 
• The current contract expires April 30, 2024. 
 
Purchasing 
On February 15, 2024, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for Transit 
Mixed Concrete.  The bid was posted on the MITN Purchasing Group website; 
www.bidnetdirect.com/mitn/city-of-troy-mi. Two Hundred and Sixteen (216) vendors were notified of the 
bid opportunity via the MITN website.  Two (2) bid proposals were received.  Below is a detailed 
summary of potential vendors for both bid opportunities. 
 

Companies notified via MITN 216 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 5 

Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 5 

Troy Companies Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  9 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

 
• The award will include a primary and secondary supplier. In the event the primary supplier is unable 

to provide materials as specified, the secondary supplier will be contacted. 
• The award is contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents, 

insurance certificates, and all other specified documents.  

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors to do 
business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, RFPS 
and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check the 
MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew their 
account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of solicitations or 
access any bid information. 

 
 
 

http://www.bidnetdirect.com/mitn/city-of-troy-mi
J-04b
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Financial 
Funds are budgeted and available in the General Fund under the Public Works Department operating 
budgets for the Streets, Water, and Parks Divisions. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends awarding a one (1) year contract to provide Transit Mixed Concrete 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidder Daytona Redi-Mix of Shelby 
Township, MI as the primary supplier and Superior Materials LLC of Farmington Hills, MI as the 
secondary supplier as per the unit prices listed in the attached bid tabulation opened February 15, 
2024; to be ordered on as needed basis; contracts expiring April 30, 2026 
 
 
 
 



Opening Date: 02/15/2024 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 24-02
Date Reviewed - 02/15/2024 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 1

TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

CITY:

ITEM UNIT 
PRICE UNIT TOTAL 

PRICE
UNIT 

PRICE UNIT TOTAL 
PRICE

1 600 Yds $143.00 Cu Yd $85,800.00 $153.00 Cu Yd $91,800.00
2 200 Yds $149.00 Cu Yd $29,800.00 $159.00 Cu Yd $31,800.00
3 50 Yds $156.00 Cu Yd $7,800.00 $166.00 Cu Yd $8,300.00

SPLIT LOAD CHARGES

4a 20 Times $0.00 Ea $0.00 $0.00 Ea $0.00
4b 5 Times $0.00 Ea $0.00 $0.00 Ea $0.00
5 20 Times $90.00 Ea $1,800.00 $110.00 Ea $2,200.00
6 20 $8.00 Cu Yd $160.00 $10.00 Cu Yd $200.00

1 25 Yds $150.00 Cu Yd $3,750.00 $160.00 Cu Yd $4,000.00
2 25 Yds $156.00 Cu Yd $3,900.00 $166.00 Cu Yd $4,150.00
3 25 Yds $163.00 Cu Yd $4,075.00 $173.00 Cu Yd $4,325.00

SPLIT LOAD CHARGES

4a 5 Times $0.00 Ea $0.00 $0.00 Ea $0.00
4b 5 Times $0.00 Ea $0.00 $0.00 Ea $0.00
5 5 Times $90.00 Ea $450.00 $110.00 Ea $550.00
6 5 $8.00 Cu Yd $40.00 $10.00 Cu Yd $50.00

Unloading Time Per Cubic Yard:
Minimum Load:
Hours of Operation:  

24 Hour Emergency Phone No:

Y or N 
Y or N 

Delivery Time:

Y or N 
Y or N 

ATTEST:
(*Bid Opening conducted via a Zoom Meeting)

Emily Frontera

None

$13,075.00

Net 30

Y

Daytona Redi-Mix

  3 Locations

  6 Sack Mix

PROPOSAL: One (1) Year Requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an Option to Renew for One (1) Additional 
Year

Y

6 Minutes
2 Yards

7AM-5PM

Y

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $137,575.00

6AM-5PM M-F; 6AM-12PM Sat

References:

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL A -  WEEKDAY DELIVERY

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROPOSAL A:

PROPOSAL B - SATURDAY DELIVERY

2 Yards

Purchasing Manager

Y
Y

Not Specified

Dave Moralee (248) 640-4939

DESCRIPTION

  6 Sack Mix
  7 Sack Mix

  7 Sack Mix

  3 Locations

Insurance Met:

Y

7-5
Exceptions:

Y

1 Year
Net 30

Warranty:
Payment Terms:

Acknowledgement:

Shelby Twp., MI

EST QTY

  2 Locations

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROPOSAL B:

  Cold Weather Protection

  Below Minimum Load Charge
  Cold Weather Protection

  12 Hour 300 PSI Mix- Flexural Strength/7 Sack

  12 Hour 300 PSI Mix- Flexural Strength/7 Sack

(586) 522-0382 Ed Rodriguez; 
(586) 307-2590 Dan Peters

Forms:

Superior Materials LLC
Farmington Hills, MI

6AM-5PM M-F; 6AM-12PM Sat

$147,375.00

$134,300.00

None

Mike Verstraete
Andrew Chambliss
Nellie Bert
Heather Chomiak

$125,360.00

  2 Locations

  Below Minimum Load Charge

6 Minutes

Y

$12,215.00
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Date:  February 26, 2024 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
  Dee Ann Irby, Controller 
  Emily Frontera, Purchasing Manager 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
    
Subject: Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option - Community 

Planning Services  
 
 
History  
• Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) has been the Planning Consultant for the City of Troy 

since 2001 and has successfully provided a high level of Community Planning Services over that 
period of time.   

• Planning services provided by CWA include maintaining regular office hours one day per week, 
assisting the Planning Department in application review and report writing, and attending Planning 
Commission meetings. 

• On February 22, 2021 Troy City Council approved a three (3) year contract to provide Community 
Planning and Related Services for the City of Troy with the option to renew for two (2) additional 
years to Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. of Ann Arbor, MI as a result of a best value process in 
accordance with SOQ-COT 21-16 {Resolution #2021-02-027}.   

• The term of the contract expires on March 31, 2024, and also provided for a two (2) year contract 
extension.   

• CWA requested a two year contract extension and also submitted a revised Attachment 1 to 
extend the hourly rate schedule through March 2026.  Note that as per the existing terms of the 
Agreement, the City may cancel the contract at any time due to poor performance or any reason 
deemed to be in its best interest.   

 
Purchasing 
• On February 22, 2021 Troy City Council approved a three (3) year contract to provide Community 

Planning and Related Services for the City of Troy with the option to renew for two (2) additional 
years to Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. of Ann Arbor, MI as a result of a best value process in 
accordance with SOQ-COT 21-16 {Resolution #2021-02-027}.   

• CWA was selected following a competitive bid process, including consideration of a Statement of 
Qualifications, and a Detailed Pricing Proposal. 

• The terms of the Agreement Extension include an additional two-year renewal period upon the 
mutual consent of both parties within 90 days of the Agreement expiration (March 31, 2024). 

• The remaining terms and conditions of the original Agreement between City and Consultant will 
continue in full force and effect. 

• CWA has continued to consistently provide quality Community Planning Services and is in mutual 
agreement to renew the agreement for the additional two-year time period. 

J-04c
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• It is in the best interest of the City to exercise the two year renewal option. 
 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Planning Department Contractual Services Account  
# 101.701.701.802.070. 
 
Recommendation  
City Management recommends exercising the two-year renewal option per mutual consent of both 
parties and successful performance of the contract with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. of Ann 
Arbor MI for Community Planning and Related Services under the same terms and conditions of 
SOQ-COT 21-16, the contract dated April 1, 2021, the Agreement Extension provided by 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. dated January 30, 2024 and revised Fee Schedule Attachment 1; 
as attached and listed below; contract expiring March 31, 2026. 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 

1. Letter from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. including Attachment 1 
2. Agreement for Planning and Consulting Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Benjamin R. Carlisle, President John L. Enos, Vice President   Douglas J. Lewan, Principal 
David Scurto, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal   Craig Strong, Principal 

Paul Montagno, Principal,   Megan Masson-Minock, Principal,    Laura Kreps, Principal 
Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 

 

 
 
January 30, 2024 
 
Emily Frontera  
Purchasing Manager  
500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Re:  Planning and Consulting Services – Contract Renewal  
 
Dear Ms. Frontera, 
 
Carlisle|Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) has a long history with the City of Troy having provided planning 
services for over the past 25 years.  In that time, I have personally served 15 years directly with the city.  In 
the 25-year relationship, as partners with the City and staff, we have provided weekly office hours, 
completed development reviews, assisted in drafting a comprehensive zoning ordinance rewrite, assisted 
in numerous zoning ordinance updates, assisted in drafting a comprehensive Master Plan rewrite, and 
assisted in drafting multiple Plan update.  Lastly, we are currently assisting the city with an update to the 
Master Plan, and a future zoning ordinance revision.  
 
As set forth in our contract, we would appreciate if the City would execute a two-year renewal. Please see 
our attached 2024-2025 fee schedule. All contractual matters and project management will be handled by 
myself.  
 
 If you have any questions, please contact us at (734) 662-2200.  

 
    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2024-2025 Fee Schedule  
January 30, 2024 
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Attachment 1: Fee Schedule 
 
 

Personnel 2024 2025 
Past President / Senior Advisor (D. Carlisle) $150 $160 
Principal / President (B. Carlisle) $140.00 $150.00 
Senior Associate $125.00 $135.00 
Associate $115.00 $125.00 
Community Planner/Landscape Architect $110.00 $120.00 
Graphics (GIS) technician  $100 $110 
Support Staff $85 $95 
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
Date:  March 4, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager  

Rob Maleszyk, Chief Financial Officer 
Dee Ann Irby, Controller 
Brian Goul, Recreation Director 
Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
Dennis E. Trantham, Deputy Public Works Director 

  Emily Frontera, Purchasing Manager 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract – 

Pump Replacement at Troy Community Center Pool     
 
 
History 

• The Community Center is 22 years old. 
• The pumps for the leisure, toys, and slide pumps are original and need to be replaced. 
• There are four pool pumps at the Community Center (Leisure, Therapy, Toys, and Slide) 
• The therapy pool pump was replaced approximately five years ago. 
• The pumps being replaced are well past their useful life and need to be replaced to ensure 

continuous operation. 
 
Purchasing 

• Pricing for the Community Center Pool Pump Replacements has been secured from Limbach, 
Inc. of Pontiac, MI as detailed in the attached proposal #JK021624B through the Oakland 
County Extended Purchasing Contract #009746. 

• City Council authorized participation in the Cooperative Purchasing Programs on February 5, 
2024 (Resolution #2024-02-031-J-5) 

 
Financial 
Funds are budgeted and available in the Troy Community Center General Equipment Capital Fund 
under Project Numbers 2023C0050, 2024C0058, and 2024C0059 for the 2024 fiscal year.  
Expenditures will be charged to account number 756.755.978.045. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends a contract be awarded to Limbach, Inc. of Pontiac, MI for 
replacement of the three pumps at the Troy Community Center Pool for an estimated cost of $94,991 
as per the Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract #009746, not to exceed budgetary 
limitations. 
 

J-04d
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HIJKLMNOHPQRHJSHTUVMSVWHXQHTYQZJWVH[Q\H]JXOHMHTYQTQSMUĤQYHXOVĤQUUQ]J_̀HSTVNJaJNHSNQTVHQ̂H]QYbcH
Hd\MUJaJNMXJQ_ScHM_WHVeNU\SJQ_SfH

ghijklgjmgnjopqg

HrOJSHTYQTQSMUHJSHLMSVWHQ_HIJKLMNOHXQHTYQZJWVHMUUH_VNVSSMY[HXQQUScHVd\JTKV_XcHKMXVYJMUSHM_WHUMLQYHXQH
HTVŶQYKHXOVĤQUUQ]J_̀fH

stusHvUUH]QYbHJSHXQHLVHTVŶQYKVWHW\YJ_̀H_QYKMUH]QYbJ_̀HOQ\YSH
swusHIQNbHx\XHrM̀Hx\XHXQHV_S\YVHMHSM̂VH]QYbHV_ZJYQ_KV_XHMXHMUUHXJKVSH
HyRHHzVKQZVHrVKTQYMY[H{\KTH
H|RHH}_SXMUUH~V]H���cH����cH����H�{�HzVTUMNVKV_XH{\KTSH
H�RHH{\KTH�d\JTKV_XH{MWH�eXV_SJQ_H�NQ_NYVXV�H
H�RHH{JTJ_̀HvUXVYMXJQ_SHXQHMNNQKKQWMXVH_V]HT\KTHM_WHL[TMSSH
H�RHH�UVNXYJNMUHPQ__VNXJQ_SHM_WHYVNQ__VNXJQ_SH
H�RHH~VNVSSMY[HOQJSXJ_̀HM_WHYJ̀̀ J_̀HXQHMNNQKTUJSOH]QYbH
s�usH�VUJZVYJVSH
st�usHrVSXcHPOVNbH�H�XMYXĤQYHTYQTVYHQTVYMXJQ_SH

g�������i���j��g
H�RHH{YJNJ_̀HTVYHxMbUM_WHPQ\_X[HPQ_XYMNXH����|�H
H�RHH}XHJSHMSS\KVWHXOMXHMUUHMWWJXJQ_MUHVeJSXJ_̀HVd\JTKV_XcHNQ_XYQUScHM_WHTJTJ_̀cHJSQUMXJQ_HZMUZVScH
HW\NX]QYbcHM_WHQXOVYHS[SXVKSHMYVHJ_HTYQTVYH]QYbJ_̀HNQ_WJXJQ_HM_WHWQH_QXHYVd\JYVHYVTMJYcH
HYVTUMNVKV_XHQYHYVOMLJUJXMXJQ_RH

HyRHHx]_VYHXQĤMNJUJXMXVHMWVd\MXVHMNNVSSHXQHXOVHL\JUWJ_̀HW\YJ_̀HXOVHJ_SXMUUMXJQ_RH�\UUHNQQYWJ_MXJQ_H
H]JXOHrYQ[HPQKK\_JX[HPV_XVYH{VYSQ__VUH]JUUHQNN\YHTYJQYHXQHMNNVSSJ_̀RH

H|RHHzVUQNMXJQ_HQ̂HNJX[HTYQTVYX[HJ_HMYVMHQ̂H]QYbH]JUUHLVHL[HXOVHQ]_VYH
H�RHHvUUH]QYbHXQHLVHTVŶQYKVWH\SJ_̀H�_JQ_HTVYSQ__VURH
H�RHHIJKLMNO�SHTYQTQSMUHJSHS\L�VNXHXQHMHXOQYQ\̀OHYVZJV]HQ̂HSNQTVcHTYJNVcHM_WHSNOVW\UV�HM_WHXQH
HK\X\MUU[HM̀YVVMLUVHXVYKSHM_WHNQ_WJXJQ_SHQ̂HXOVHNQ_XYMNXRH

H�RH� ¡¢£�¤¥¦¤¦£§̈�¢£�©§̈¢ª�«¦¥�£¬©¬­�®̄°�ª§±£�§­ª�¢£�£²³́¬µ¶�¶¦�¶¡¬�§¶¶§µ¡¬ª� ¬¥·£�̧�
�¹¦­ª¢¶¢¦­£º�»«�¶¡¢£�¤¥¦¤¦£§̈�·¬¬¶£�¼¢¶¡�±¦²¥�§¤¤¥¦©§̈½�¤̈¬§£¬�£¢¾­�§­ª�¥¬¶²¥­�¦­¬�®¿°�
�µ¦¤±�¦«�¶¡¢£�̈¬¶¶¬¥º�

�Àº��Á­±�§­ª�§̈̈�̈¬§ª�¶¢·¬£�§¥¬�¬£¶¢·§¶¬£�§­ª�§¥¬�£²³́¬µ¶�¶¦�µ¡§­¾¬�ª²¬�¶¦�£²¤¤̈±�µ¡§¢­�
�§­ªÂ¦¥�£¡¢¤¤¢­¾�ª¬̈§±£º�
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
Date:  March 4, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
  Rob Maleszyk, Chief Financial Officer 
  Dee Ann Irby, Controller 

Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director  
Jason Schmidt, Water & Sewer Operations Manager 
Emily Frontera, Purchasing Manager 
G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution #4 – HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative – 2024 Sewer 

Root Treatment  
 
History 
 
• City DPW staff proactively cleans and televises the sanitary sewers in the City. Sewer lines with 

extensive root intrusions have been identified for treatment. 
• Sewer root treatment was planned and budgeted in FY23/24.  
 
Purchasing 
 
• HGAC is the Houston-Galveston Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program that has been in 

existence for over 30 years; specializing in high ticket, capital intensive products and services that 
require technical, detailed specifications and extensive professional skills to evaluate bid responses. 
Products available thru the HGACBuy Program are products utilized by Public Safety, Public Works, 
Emergency Services and Communications.  

• On July 7, 2020, bid responses were received from twenty-four (24) vendors. The bid was hosted 
by HGAC Purchasing Cooperative. Contracts were awarded to the lowest responsible bidder 
providing best value for each product item as detailed in the bid specifications. Duke’s Root Control, 
Inc. is the awarded low bidder for sewer root treatment services. 

• Pricing for the 2024 Sewer Root Treatment per contract SC01-21 including all labor, materials and 
equipment has been secured from Duke’s Root Control, Inc of Syracuse, NY through the HGACBuy 
Purchasing Cooperative. 

• City Council authorized participation in the Cooperative Purchasing Programs on February 5, 2024 
(Resolution #2024-02-031-J-4a). 

 
Financial 
 
Funding for this work is budgeted and available in the 2023-2024 Sewer Capital Fund; Project 
#2024C0069. Expenditures will be charged to Account # 527.535.973.214025. 
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council award the 2024 Sewer Root Treatment contract to Duke’s Root 
Control, Inc. of Syracuse, NY for an estimated amount of $145,939.08, as detailed in the attached 
proposal and as per the HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative Contract #SC01-21; not to exceed 
budgetary limitations. 
 
A copy of the proposal and recommendation shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



Contract
No.: SC01-21 Date

Prepared: 14-Feb

Buying
Agency: Contractor:

Contact
Person:

Prepared
By:

Phone: Phone:

Fax: Fax:

Email: Email:

Quan Unit Pr Total

56543 1.96 110824.28

11137 2.36 26283.32

2622 3.29 8626.38

35 5.86 205.1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

145939.08

Quan Unit Pr Total

0

0

0

0

0

0%

0

145939.08

CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET
For Catalog & Price Sheet Type Purchases

General Description
of Product: RAZOR ROOTER II CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL

emily.ause@troymi.gov

DUKE'S ROOT CONTROL, INC.

Bob Hunn

614-354-3927

bob@dukes.com  /  lisa@dukes.com

This Worksheet is prepared by Contractor and given to End User.  If a PO is issued, both documents 
MUST be faxed to H-GAC @ 713-993-4548.  Therefore please type or print legibly.

City of Troy, MI

Delivery Date: 6/30/2024 D. Total Purchase Price (A+B+C): 

B. Unpublished Options, Accessory or Service items - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary
(Note: Unpublished Items are any which were not submitted and priced in contractor's bid.)

C. Trade-Ins / Special Discounts / Other Allowances / Freight / Installation / Miscellaneous Charges

Subtotal C:

For this transaction the percentage is: 

Emily Ause

248-524-3438

SC211003 RAZOROOTER II CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 4" THRU 9"

Catalog / Price Sheet
Name: SEWER CLEANING, HYDRO EXCAVATING, INSPECTION EQIPMENT,AND MISCELLIOUS SERVICES

Subtotal A:

Check: Total cost of Unpublished Options (B) cannot exceed 25% of the total of
the Base Unit Price plus Published Options (A+B).

Description

A. Catalog / Price Sheet Items being purchased - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary

SC211004 RAZOROOTER II CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 10" THRU 12"

SC211006 RAZOROOTER II CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 18" THRU 22"

SC211005 RAZOROOTER II CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 13" THRU 16"

Subtotal B:

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:

Description

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
Date:  February 20, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 

Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager  
R. Brent Savidant, Community Development Director 
G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer   

    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Tuscan Villas Lot Split - Project No. 22.914.3 
 
 
History 
 
Mr. Frank Mancini proposes to develop Tuscan Villas Lot Split located on the north side of E. Square 
Lake Road, between John R & Dequindre Roads, Section 1.   
 
The preliminary site plan was administratively approved on July 27th, 2022.  
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the 
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements, which will be constructed by 
Mr. Frank Mancini on behalf of the City of Troy including: Water Main, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, 
Concrete Pavement & Sidewalk, and Rain Garden.  The required fees and refundable escrow 
deposits in the form of an Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit and 10% Cash, that will assure 
completion of the municipal improvements, have been provided by Mr. Frank Mancini (see attached 
Private Agreement).  
 
Financial 
 
See attached summary of required deposits and fees for this Private Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 

J-05











NOTE: A Minimum of 24 hour notice for inspection shall be provided prior to construction.

TO SCHEDULE INSPECTION CALL
INSPECTION LINE: (248) 680-7221

Stipulations:
On-Site Private Rain Garden

Applicant

Acreage/QtyCategory Permit Item

Work will meet all codes and inspections.

Tuscan Villas Lot SplitWork Description:

48085-3935TROY MI
2914 DINAFOR INFORMATION REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF THIS 

PERMIT, CONTACT THE CITY OF TROY ENGINEERING 
DEPARTMENT AT (248) 524-3383

Expires:02/15/2024Issued:

Project No: 48085-393MITROY
AcreageSubdivision:

2914 DINA
0Lot:88-20-01-300-008

MANCINI, FRANCO C & GIOVAN2403 E SQUARE LAKE Permittee/OwnerLocation

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am - 4:30pm www.troymi.gov

Engineering Department

Fax: (248) 524-1838Troy, Michigan  48084

500 W. Big Beaver Road

PPC22.914.3Permit No:

Project Construction

Sanitary SewersEscrow Deposits 36,639.00

Water MainsEscrow Deposits 55,267.00

Storm SewersEscrow Deposits 4,018.00

PavementEscrow Deposits 67,810.00

GradingEscrow Deposits 7,995.00

Temporary Access RoadEscrow Deposits 1,700.00

Street LightsEscrow Deposits 15,000.00

Water Main Testing/Chlorination PA2Cash Fees (Non-Refundable) 478.00

SignsCash Fees (Non-Refundable) 4.00

arkers - Full RangeCash Fees (Non-Refundable) 5.00

Construction Engineering (CE)Cash Deposits (Refundable) 171,912.00

SidewalksCash Deposits (Refundable) 1,363.00

ROW RestorationCash Deposits (Refundable) 1,500.00

Repair & Maintenance-Public StreetsCash Deposits (Refundable) 1.00

Punchlist & RestorationCash Deposits (Refundable) 171,912.00

0.00

PAID IN FULL

Amount Due:



Project Construction

1) Secure a permit from the City of Troy prior to the commencement of construction or maintenance operations.  If a subcontractor is to perform 

the construction or maintenance entailed in this application, he shall be responsible, along with the applicant, for any provisions of this application 

and plans which apply to him.

2) Any and all construction proposed under this application will meet all requirements of the City, together with the Supplemental Specifications 

set forth on this application for permit.

3) Save harmless the City against any and all claims for damage arising from operations covered by this application and furnish proof of insurance 

coverage for the term of the permit issued.  Insurance coverage shall be for general liability, property damage and workman’s compensation at 

limits deemed acceptable to the City of Troy.  The City of Troy to be named as additional insured on the general liability.

4) Surrender the permit herein applied for and surrender all rights there under whenever notified to do so by the City of Troy because of its need for 

the area covered by the permit or because of a default in any of the conditions of this permit.

5) Immediately remove, alter, relocate or surrender the facility of which this application is granted if requested by the City of Troy to do so upon 

termination of this application and upon failure to do so, will reimburse the City of Troy for the cost of removing, altering or relocating the facility.

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS:

1) INTENT:  Since a permit will have to be secured from the City prior to the start of any construction or maintenance operations proposed by this 

application, it is the intent of these supplemental specifications to be incorporated as part of the plans or specifications required for this proposed 

work.

2) EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL:  The City shall specify if trenches or excavations under or adjacent to the  

road surface shall be sheeted, shored and/or braced in such a manner as to prevent caving, loss, or settlement of foundation material supporting the 

pavement.  Excavated material shall be stocked in such locations that it does not obstruct vision on the traveled portion of the road and in such a 

manner that it will interfere as little as possible with the flow of traffic.  Sod and topsoil shall be stocked separately from other excavated material.  

The applicant shall dispose of all surplus and unsuitable material outside of the limits of the highway unless the permit provides for disposal at 

approved locations within the right-of-way.  In the latter case, the material shall be leveled and trimmed in an approved manner.

3) BACKFILLING AND COMPACTING BACKFILL:  All trenches, holes and pits, where specified, shall be filled with sound earth or with sand-

gravel if so provided, placed in successive layers not more than six (6) inches in depth, loose measure, and each layer shall be thoroughly 

compacted by tamping and all backfill subject to check by the Controlled Density Method (minimum 95%).  Grass shall be restored with sod and 

topsoil in accordance with the City of Troy Standard Specifications for Turf Restoration.

Sand-gravel backfill material shall consist of approved bank-run sand or gravel or a mixture of approved and or stone screenings in the 

mixture.  All of the material shall be of such size that it will pass through a screen having two and one-half (2 ½) inch square openings, unless 

otherwise authorized.

Any excavation within the right-of-way, outside the traveled portion of the road, must be maintained until all settlement has occurred and must 

be re-shaped and temporarily seeded for soil erosion control.  Grass areas shall be restored in accordance with the City of Troy Standard 

Specifications for Turf Restoration.

All excavation within the traveled portion of the road must be backfilled with sand and compacted.  Special requirements are to be determined 

by the surface type.

4) CROSSING ROADBED BY TUNNELING:  When the pipe is installed by tunneling, boring or jacking without cutting the existing pavement, 

the backfill shall be made by tamping a dry mix of lean concrete into place so as to completely fill any voids, remaining around the installation.  

The concrete shall be composed of one (1) part Portland cement and ten (10) parts sand-gravel by volume.  Sand-gravel shall conform to the 

requirements given in Paragraph 3.

5) CROSSING BY CUTTING GRAVEL ROAD:  All trenches are to be backfilled with approved material to within twelve (12) inches of the 

surface within the limits of the roadbed.  Backfill methods will be as described in Paragraph 3.  All surplus excavated material will be disposed of 

as described in Paragraph 2.  The top twelve (12) inches within the roadbed will be backfilled with eight (8) inches of 4A limestone or slag topped 

with four (4) inches of processed road gravel (MDOT 22A).  Trenches outside of the roadbed will be backfilled in accordance with Paragraph 3.

6) CROSSING BY CUTTING PAVEMENT AND TRENCHING:  When this method is used, the pavement shall be cut back so that the opening is 

at least twelve (12) inches wider on each side than the width of the trench.  In all concrete surfaces or bases, edges of trenches shall be formed by 

the use of a concrete saw.  The pavement shall be broken in such a manner as to allow the reinforcing steel, if any, to protrude a sufficient distance 

for lapping or tying with similar reinforcement in the pavement patch.  Backfill shall be in accordance with Paragraph 3.  After the backfill has 

been thoroughly compacted, the pavement shall be replaced with processed road gravel (MDOT 22A) stabilized with chloride until such time as the 

pavement can be replaced with new pavement by the permit licensee.  Maintenance of the temporary pavement will be assumed by the City if the 

contractor fails to do so and cost incurred will be deducted from the permit licensee’s deposit.

7) DEPTH OF COVER MATERIAL:  Pipes shall be placed to a depth that will provide not less than four (4) feet of cover between the top of 

roadway surface and the pipe.

8) TREE TRIMMING OR REMOVAL:  A special permit will be required for any proposed tree trimming or removal.

9) Any proposed operation in the right-of-way not covered in the above specifications, submitted with this application shall be done in accordance 

with additional specifications or instructions deemed necessary by the City or its duly authorized representatives.

10) The following must be attached to the application when applicable:  a}  Map; b}  Plans, specifications and location of facility; c}  Traffic plan 

in cases of street closure; d}  Proof of insurance; e}  City Council resolution granting a franchise or permit to operate a cable television system, 

telecommunications system or to install other public utilities in the City of Troy.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
Date:  February 28, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
  G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer    
 
Subject: Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2023 
 
History 
 

In accordance with the guidelines for adding or deleting streets to the annual road mileage 
certification for cities and villages, the following non-platted street requires a resolution from 
Council to accept jurisdiction of this street.  

 
Addition: 
 

Street Name Added Length Plat 
Kohli 1,161.83 ft. Eden Gardens 

 
 

The addition of this local street will bring the local road mileage total to 270.66 miles, the major total 
will remain at 57.34 miles. 
 

Financial 
 

The City of Troy's allocation of Michigan Transportation Funds is based on the number of miles of 
road under City jurisdiction.  The road listed under addition is under control of the City, open for 
public purposes, and is being maintained by the City.  It is necessary that the foregoing road be 
added to the Act 51 mileage report so that transportation funds can be properly allocated to the City 
of Troy. 

 
Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the road listed above, under addition, be accepted and certified for the Act 
51 mileage report. 
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date:  February 27, 2024 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager  

G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
   
Subject: Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – February 21, 2024 
 
 
At the Traffic Committee meeting of February 21, 2024, the following recommendations were 
made for City Council approval: 
 
4. Request for Traffic Control – Hearthside Drive & Country Ridge Drive 
 
RESOLVED, that the Country Ridge Drive Approach at Hearthside Drive be MODIFIED 
from UNCONTROLLED, to STOP CONTROLLED. 
 
 
Minutes of the meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GSF/G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2024\02_February 21\City Council\20240117 Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes.docx 
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Traffic Committee Minutes – February 21, 2024 DRAFT 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, February 21, 2024 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present:  Cindy Nurak  
    Abi Swaminathan 
    Cynthia Wilsher 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
    Angela Zhou, Student Representative  
 
Absent:   Shama Kenkre 
    Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Deputy Fire Chief, Michael Koehler     
     
Also present: G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer 
    Sgt. Brian Warzecha, Police Department 
    Merissa Clark, Administrative Assistant      
         
2. Minutes – January 17, 2023 Traffic Committee 
 
Resolution # 2024-02-03 
Moved by Nurak 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
To approve the January 17, 2023 minutes as printed. 
 
Yes:   Nurak, Swaminathan, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   None 
Absent:  Kenkre, Kilmer, Petrulis 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
3. No Public Hearings  
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
4. Request for Traffic Control – Hearthside & Country Ridge Drive 
 
Cheryl Gonda of 6113 Hearthside Drive requested that the intersection of Hearthside Drive and 
Country Ridge Drive be reviewed for purposes of traffic control at the uncontrolled intersection. She 
states: I live in cul-de-sac on Hearthside Drive and the existing uncontrolled intersection is 
dangerous, cars turning off Country Ridge Drive turn without looking. This creates a hazardous 
situation for drivers, there have been several near misses recently.  



Traffic Committee Minutes – February 21, 2024 DRAFT 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
The Traffic Committee received 1 email in support, and 1 phone call opposed.  
 
We live at 6071 Hearthside Drive, Troy, MI 48098. 
 
We fully support the controlled intersection proposal. We have four children and cars come 
flying thru all the time. It’s dangerous. 
 
 
Troy C. Otto 
Owner/Broker 
Otto Family Properties, LLC 
Licensed Attorney (P67448) 
(248) 515-2753 
troy@ottofamilyproperties.com 
 
 
Traffic Engineering received a call from Pat DeFilippis at 6069 Country Ridge in opposition to 
any traffic control at this location, big waste of money. 
 
Mike & Cheryl Gouda – stated they have lived at 6113 Hearthside for 30 years, and the 
speeding in the subdivision has gotten worse. They have a lot of little kids living near by and 
they’ve had a close call recently and are scared an accident will happen with all the kids in 
the area. People cut thru the subdivision to avoid the light at Square Lake and Coolidge, 
especially during rush hour. He mentioned a neighbor also sees people driving like crazy, 
sometimes going 30-40 MPH. He really thinks that a stop or yield sign would deter people 
from cutting thru all the time, and make the subdivision safer.  
 
Cynthia Wilsher mentioned that OHM’s report doesn’t think it would be affective for a yield 
sign to be installed, and explained that it may do the opposite, causing more speeding at the 
corner.  
 
Sgt. Warzecha explained it will fix one problem, but may cause more problems in the long run 
and mentioned maybe a stop sign being more beneficial. He also added that the corner did 
have a good clearance and good visibility, Wilsher agreed.  
 
Mr. Gouda explained that when he leaves the street he has been almost hit by cars taking 
the turn from Country Ridge onto Hearthside and not looking before turning.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # 2024-02-04  
Moved by Ziegenfelder 
Seconded by Nurak 
 
Yes: Nurak, Swaminathan, Ziegenfelder  
No:  Wilsher 
Absent: Kenkre, Kilmer, Petrulis 

mailto:troy@ottofamilyproperties.com


Traffic Committee Minutes – February 21, 2024 DRAFT 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
RESOLVED, that the Country Ridge Approach at Hearthside be modified from 
UNCONTROLLED, to STOP CONTROLLED.  

 
7.  Public Comment  
  
 
8.  Other Business  
 
 
9.  Adjourn  
  
The meeting adjourned at 7:53 PM.  
 
 
 
                                                            
Pete Ziegenfelder -Chairperson   G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2024\21_February_20240221_Minutes_Traffic Committee DRAFT  



laf/G:\Real Estate\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\DTE 22-301-011.docx 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject:   

February 22, 2024 

Mark F. Miller, City Manager 

Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative

Request to Grant an Underground Utility Easement Over a City Owned 
Property to DTE Electric Company, Sidwell #88-20-22-301-011 

History 

The City of Troy received a request to grant an underground utility easement over a portion of 
the public park property fronting Talbot Avenue. The 10-foot wide easement would extend 
approximately 71 feet from an existing electrical pedestal to the abutting property at 3459 
Talbot.  

The owners of 3459 Talbot, a residential parcel zoned R-1E, One Family Residential, are 
expanding their building footprint which necessitates the relocation of their existing 
underground service. The closest feed point is an existing pedestal on the City park property. 

Engineering and Public Works staff have reviewed the request and design plans and 
recommend granting the easement to DTE Electric Company. 

Financial 

There is no financial consideration on this document. 

Recommendation 

City Management recommends that Troy City Council grant the attached permanent 
easement consistent with our policy of granting easements for development and improvement 
purposes. 
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Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and 
other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification.February 23, 2024Created:

Map Scale:  1=

DTE Electric Company
Underground Easement
88-20-22-301-011

178

Legend:

Notes:







Parent Parcel: #88-20-22-301-011
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
Date:         February 27, 2024 
 
To:          Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:         Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager 
  G. Scott Finlay, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
   
Subject:      Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Shekhor Deb, Sidwell 

#88-20-12-426-024 
 
 
History 
 
As part of the redevelopment of a residential property zoned R-1C, One Family Residential, 
the City of Troy received a permanent easement for storm sewers and surface drainage from 
Shekhor Deb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-12-426-024. The property is 
located in the southeast ¼ of Section 12 on Dequindre Road., between English and Quartz 
streets. 
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached permanent easement 
consistent with our policy of accepting easements for improvement and development 
purposes. 
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Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and 
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
Date:  March 4, 2024 
 
 
To:   Mark F. Miller, City Manager 
  
From:  Robert J. Bruner, Deputy City Manager 
  Megan E. Schubert, Assistant City Manager  

Brian Goul, Recreation Director 
   
Subject: Troy Historical Society Annual Report for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 and Financial 

Statements for Fiscal Year Ending 2023 
 

 
The Troy Historical Society, established as a 501.c.3 nonprofit corporation in 1966, administers the 
Troy Historic Village for the City of Troy through a renewable management agreement. Troy Historical 
Society provides engaging education and enrichment programs at the city-owned Troy Historic 
Village as well as outreach programs for schools and adult groups. Nearly 30,000 guests visit the 
Village each year, including 15,000 students, chaperones, and teachers from public, private and 
charter schools in southeast Michigan. The Troy Historical Society is committed to expanding 
awareness of the Village as an outstanding center for history education, arts and culture, and 
inclusive community engagement.  

The Troy Historical Society provides a welcoming environment that: 

▪ Engages visitors in positive learning experiences and social interactions 
▪ Respects the significance of history as we seek knowledge, understanding and relevance in 

our lives 
▪ Recognizes artifacts as social objects and catalysts for sharing information and ideas 
▪ Embraces innovative and creative interpretive programs 
▪ Encourages civil discussion and objective analysis and evaluation of controversial issues 
▪ Promotes a stewardship and adherence to the highest standards of historic preservation; 

manages resources with integrity and transparency; and treats all peoples with dignity and 
respect 

Attached is the Troy Historical Society’s Annual Report for FYE 2023 and Financial Statements for 
FYE 2023.  
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Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023



The Board of Trustees of the Troy Historical Society (THS) and staff of the Troy Historic Village (Village) 
present this Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30th, 2023 (FYE2023). We are pleased to 
report that 27,484 people visited the Troy Historic Village or attended Troy Historic Village programs 
this past fiscal year! That number resembles our pre-Covid FYE2019 total attendance of 28,005 and 
represents a return to regular programming at the Village. Our biggest challenge moving forward is 
capacity: how much can we offer with the resources we have?

STAFF AND BOARD SUPPORT
Owned by the City of Troy and operated by the Troy Historical Society, 
the Troy Historic Village employs 3 full-time and 14 part-time staff 
members representing 8.5 full-time equivalents. In the past year, we 
hired a new business manager and increased our cleaning services 
to match our pre-Covid capacity. We added another �exible teaching 
staff position to scale up during our busy �eld trip season and for 
large community events; this staff person was also able to �ll in for 
others on parental leave. The Troy Historic Village contracts regularly 
with a Graphic Designer, Webmaster, Blacksmith, and Watercolor 
Artist for operational and programmatic support. 

During FYE2023, the Troy Historical Society worked to realign its 
committee structure to match the recently adopted Strategic Plan. 
Committees vary in composition, sometimes including staff or 
community members where appropriate:
• Village Growth and Direction Committee focuses on board and 

staff support and improvement.
• Finance Committee oversees the �nances of THS and the Village.
• Fund Development Committee manages memberships,

fundraisers, donors, and grants.
• Community Engagement Committee works to understand and 

partner with community organizations.
• Preservation, Innovation, and Education Committee works to 

utilize the Village buildings, grounds, and collections in the best 
possible way.

AROUND THE VILLAGE

Padma Kuppa, 
President

Kevin Enright, 
Vice President

Ken Meskin, Treasurer
John Lavender, 

Assistant Treasurer
Kris Rose, Secretary

Howard Adams
Garrick Allison

Barbara Chambers
Aditya Ezhuthachan

Ken Heck
Kristi Hudson
Jagdish Karira
Sue Lavander
Kevin Lindsey

Michael Nowosatko
JoAnn Preston

Beena Nagappala
Cindy Stewart

Troy Historical Society Board 
as of November 1, 2023



PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
Field Trips were back in full force! The Troy Historic Village was busy in the 
fall and booked solid from March to June hosting 9,660 students, 1,870 
chaperones, and 476 teachers during the 2022-2023 school year. In 
December 2022 with grant funding, we were able to pilot an Indigenous 
Voices program for Troy 5th grade students. With the help of Wayne Hardwick, 
a member of the Sault Ste Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians and respected 
elder, we brought on other Indigenous partners to share their culture and 
heritage with three elementary schools. Using feedback from teachers, 
students, and presenters we hosted all Troy 5th graders in 2023.

PUBLIC PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
Public programs for our youngest visitors included Summer Half-Day History 
programs with hands-on activities like cooking, punching tin, and exploring 
a soldier’s life. Digger the Village Groundhog encouraged kids to explore the 
past using their senses and experience the Village after dark with a nighttime 
scavenger hunt. We spent time rebuilding our preschool audience this year 

by marketing the depth 
of the Preschool Story 
Time program, highlighting the fact that each session includes more 
than just a story. Our young participants color, count, practice �ne 
motor skills, and explore the Village each time they visit Cheddar the 
Village Mouse. 

Adults explored everything from a History of Museums to the 
Underground Railroad at the monthly Thursday Tea program; they 
even listened their way through a History of Jazz with a local duet! 
Constitution Café participants continued to explore and debate 
the merits and dif�culties of the Constitutional Amendments while 
Preservation Conversations covered Independence Hall to Troy 
architect Minoru Yamasaki and his Twin Towers in New York City. 
Villagers read Isaac’s Storm: A Man, A Time, and the Deadliest 
Hurricane in History, and then went “beyond the book” with programs 
on climate change and disaster tourism.

Immersive experiences included a retelling of the Edmund Fitzgerald’s 
�nal journey, a trip through Victorian Christmas at the Village, and 
Supper with a Soldier (and several other 1860s reenactors). Village 
staff enjoyed creating themed tours as new ways to explore the Village 
and Troy history. This past year we walked through history at the 
Union Corners and White Chapel cemeteries and dug deep into our 
collections for our Curious and Macabre Lantern Tour and Objects of 
Our Affection Tour. In total, 15,478 people of all ages joined us for this 
wide range of programs, activities, and events in the FYE 2023.

AROUND THE VILLAGE



CONTINUED GROWTH AND 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

“As our school numbers return, we are simply faced with the question of how big can we 
grow? And that is a great place to be!” ~Jen Peters, Executive Director

2023
July 2022-June 2023

Covid Recovery

Financials*
SOURCE OF REVENUE

41% Programs & Admissions
13% Memberships & Donations
9% Rentals, Store, & Other
10% Sponsorships & 
Fundraising
27% Grants & Government

FUNCTIONAL 
EXPENSES

51% Programs
34% Administrative

 15% Fundraising

*Audited Financial Statements from FY 2022/2023
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Members
BENEFACTORS5
PATRONS12
LIFETIME32
HOUSEHOLD & 
INDIVIDUAL108
TOTAL 
MEMBERS262
TOTAL 
DONORS152

ADDED TO THE 
ENDOWMENT$18,300

Village Visitors
ENJOYED A GUIDED TOUR

EXPERIENCED A 
WORKSHOP OR CLASS

DROPPED IN FOR A 
SELF-GUIDED TOUR

PARTICIPATED IN HEALTHY 
INITIATIVES

JOINED US FOR FREE 
OPEN HOUSE DAY

LISTENED TO A LECTURE 
OR PROGRAM

CAME TO VILLAGE 
COMMUNITY EVENT

ENJOYED THE VILLAGE 
DURING A PRIVATE RENTAL
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820

1268

1383

1429

1864

1871

12,919

15,086

TOTAL
28,005

11,398

7,898

TOTAL
19,296

5,580

1,775

TOTAL
7,355 16,246

6,884

TOTAL
23,130

15,478

12,006

TOTAL
27,484

Programs       Schools

41%



FINANCE
THS successfully completed its twelfth year operating the Village 
through a renewable management agreement with the City of 
Troy. The current agreement will end in 2026. In 2022-2023 we 
felt comfortable returning to a full budget after two full years of 
budgeting in 6-month increments. While expenses exceeded 
income, that was expected and covered by remaining Covid 
support funds. THS ended the year in a strong � nancial position 
with total gross receipts of $526,619. We now have a self-
managed Village Programs and Operations Endowment that will 
improve the long-term sustainability of Village operations, and for 
the � rst time we can work towards creating a reserve to alleviate 
cash � ow � uctuations. Challenges will include keeping up with 
in� ation and providing staff fair and competitive wages while 
working to expand programming capacity. 

ENDOWMENTS
THS � nalized an endowment structure and has partnered 
with The Cook Group to self-manage a Village Programs and 
Operations Endowment. The goal is to supplement the cost 
of general operations of the Village with a � xed annual disbursement as determined by THS. As of June 30, 2023, the 
endowment fund value was $418,311; $22,000 was disbursed to Village operations during the � scal year.

The Troy Historic Village endowment fund managed by the Troy Community Foundation was valued at $32,767.48 as of June 
30, 2023. 

GRANTS
The following grants were received in FYE2023:
4 The Michigan Arts and Culture Council awarded a $22,500 Operations Grant; THS scored high enough to secure this 
 grant for 3 � scal years though funding may change from year to year.
4 The Filmer Foundation awarded $4,000 to support the launch of the 5th grade Indigenous Voices program for Troy 
 Schools.
4 Michigan Humanities Council awarded a $2,500 Bridging Michigan Grant to support the Indigenous Voices program. 
 Combined with Filmer we were � nally able to provide a pilot program in December 2022.
4 Kresge Foundation allocated $5,000 from a three-year grant of $15,000 to support programs at the Village that 
 contribute to the Troy community’s quality of life.
4 The Troy Community Foundation awarded $1,000 towards rebuilding our Village website. As we redesign the site, we 
 will be working to improve accessibility and make it easy for staff to maintain.
4 The City of Troy appropriated $100,000 to support general operations in the Village and $6,000 to support a 
 dendroarchaeological study of our oldest buildings. This is in addition to work completed through the Facilities & 
 Grounds department to maintain and upgrade Village buildings and grounds.

FINANCIALS

Financial Snapshot
Revenue
Field Trips, Programs, & Admissions $207,340
Memberships & Private Donations $65,656
Donations to the Endowment $18,300
Rentals, Village Store, & Other $44,053
Sponsorships & Fundraising $51,639
Grants $29,481
Assets Released from Restrictions $4,150
City of Troy Operations Support $106,000

Expenses
Salaries and Related Fees $399,523
Artists and Professional Fees $61,684
Program Expenses $27,397
Fundraising Expenses $38,991
Administrative & Overhead Expenses $36,718

Phillip & Elizabeth Filmer Memorial 
Charitable Trust

ALLISON
F A M I L Y
FOUNDATION



Staff Curator, Elizabeth Thornburg, and volunteers 
worked on the following projects during FYE2023:  
4 Identifying and pulling artifacts for the Curious and Macabre 

Lantern Tour, the Victorian Christmas Mini-Exhibit, Objects 
of Our Affection Tour, and Pets: A History of Companionship 
summer exhibit; researching various cemetery tours.

4 Digitizing and adding materials from 1995, 1996, 1997, and 
2005 backlog to the Past Perfect database.

4 Digitizing small collections related to Troy Schools including 
photographs from the Poppleton School collection and 
adding those items to Past Perfect.

4 Digitizing the Caswell Family photo album, Register of Women 
Voters 1919-1924, Teacher’s Daily Register from Stone School, 
Rochester Era Troy news columns 1945-1949, the Renshaw 
collection as well as several other small collections of Troy 
Historical Society materials.

4 Digitizing photos on loan from the Stevens Family.
4 Digitizing a Barnard Family 8mm �lm with the assistance of 

Troy Video.
4 Removing the remainder of collection items from the Lange 

Street House storage.
4 Organizing the Gloria Anderlie collection (a unique collection 

of mid-20th century Troy photographs, news clippings and 
scrapbooks as well as cassettes and VHS tapes of Big 
Beaver High School Reunions)

4 Providing photographs for a new Longhorn Steakhouse in Troy. 
They will be displayed with credit to the Troy Historical Society. 

4 Highlighting several newly acquired artifacts as part of 
Troy’s Citizens Academy.

4 Researching the Methodist Parsonage to update the 
interpretation to 1923-1926. Collaborating with the current Troy 
United Methodist Church, retired Methodist Clergy and 
ephemera expert LaVere Webster, and the Michigan United 
Methodist Archivist to identify a family and artifacts to focus on.

4 Surveying the Caswell House contents and archive to update 
Past Perfect records; re�ning the collection to prepare to 
remove items found outside the scope of the collections.

The following items were accessioned into the 
Collection:
4 Big Beaver High School scrapbook – Kinda Hupman
4 Early 20th century birdcage, early 20th century ice cream 

maker, 1920s Floor lamp, 19th Century Desktop – Jen Peters
4 Small silver locket with photographs of pets – Debbie Hancock
4 1864 Bound volume of The American Agriculturist for the Farm, 

Garden, and Household, (Volume 23) – Thomas Hayes
4 1916 Edison Mimeograph machine – THS Purchase (from 

NSCDA funds)
4 Two different bronze concept pieces for the “Re�ective 

Head”, one appx 24” tall and one appx 8” – City of Troy
4 Two boxes of slides and a bag of Troy Speci�c Fire 

Department VHS Tapes – Troy Fire Department
4 Several mid-20th century toys and games including a bowling 

game, ez-bake type oven, paper dolls, toy pots and pans, a toy 
doll chair, and 2 mismatched handmade crutches – 
Rhonda Morris 

4 19th Century 
Step-back 
Hutch, two early 
19th Century 
Framed 
Samplers, large 
Johnston’s hot 
chocolate 
dispenser/
advertising piece 
– Charles 
Stenback 

4 Framed 
watercolor of 
Poppleton 
School by Jo 
Chiapelli 
given to Donor’s 
late husband on 
his retirement from Troy 
School District – Donna Morse

4 Jane Hadden’s 1900s reference book from Stiles Elementary 
School (in poor condition, but the only artifact from this Troy 
family in the collection) – Adrienne Crawford 

4 Troy Farmer’s Club program from 1913 – David Doss
4 Newspaper clippings pertaining to Troy and one Troy Farmer’s 

Club program from 1913 – David Doss
4 Steeple clock, two pairs of mesh gloves, an electric vaporizer, 

two mouth harps, and an electric toaster – Heather Marsoupian
4 Fourteen 19th-century books pertaining to the Methodist 

Church including several books of hymns – LaVere Webster

The following items were accepted into the THS 
Education collection:  
4 A chair and multiple lamps to be used in historic spaces – 

Wayne Plets
4 Coffee Mill or pepper grinder for Education collection – 

Claudette Rusing
4 Peter Wright Anvil 1-0-19 for programming use – Mark 

Mazorowicz
4 Butter paddle, ice cream scoop, a stereoscope holder and 

30 stereoscope slides, two pairs of wire-rimmed glasses, 
and assorted sewing tools – Heather Marsoupian

4 Newspaper clippings to add to our clipping �les from the 
collection of Tamara Renshaw – Bob Renshaw

Deaccessions:
4 No items were deaccessioned during FYE2023.

COLLECTIONS

Volunteer hours were utilized by 
Collections in FYE2023444



The City of Troy worked with THS to update the Troy Historic 
Village Master Plan in FYE2023. The Master Plan Steering 
Committee sought input from Village staff, visitors, community 
partners, and neighbors as they worked to better utilize the 
Village and fully incorporate the Niles-Barnard House and 
adjacent land. Rather than a detailed list of projects, the plan 
outlines and prioritizes several project areas with rough funding 
estimates. The �nal plan was approved by the THS Board in 
July, by the Historic District Commission in September, and is 
available on the Village website. THS looks forward to working 
with the City to identify possible funding and complete projects 
that will improve the usability and visibility of the Village for 
years to come.

The City completed a number of projects around the Village 
this year. HVAC systems in the General Store, Parsonage, 
and Church were updated, as was the overall Village security 
system. The Lange Street House, purchased by THS in 2007 
to expand the Village property, was demolished and the land 
was regraded. As work moves forward on the Master Plan, this 
northwest corner of the Village has been identi�ed as an ideal 
location for seasonal green parking. The City also replaced the 
Church entrance ramp which had become uneven and dif�cult 
to maneuver due to settling over time. 

The Village completed phone and internet upgrades, improving 
the Wi-Fi reception within the Main Building and across some 
of the grounds. A new point of sale system was implemented, 
enabling better remote transactions for our community events. 
Village volunteers converted the tin display wagon into a 
functional puppet wagon that has been used for our preschool 
story time. Unused store furnishings from the Stage Nature 
Center were re�tted to update the Village store, improving 
visibility, accessibility, and �ow. Volunteers also continue to 
touch up small paint jobs around the Village.

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

Rentals including Weddings, 
Graduations, Family Celebrations, 
and Business Meetings36



THS continued to develop relationships and collaborate with 
community partners through FYE2023. To facilitate this work and 
better understand the needs of our community, THS has created 
and continues to develop a Community Engagement Committee 
comprised of board members, staff members, and community 
partners.

Village staff and volunteers handed out treats at Troy Recreation 
and Troy Public Library events, shared old-time toys at Troy Family 
Daze, and brought a bit of history to the Troy Farmers Market 
and Troy Fire Department Open Houses. We’ve collaborated on 
programs as well, working with the Troy Chamber to put on Fire 
and Flannel and hosting the Troy Kiwanis annual fundraiser. We 
again provided a pop-up Maple Syrup shop for Stage Nature 
Center’s Maple Syrup Days. One of our biggest partnerships 
continues to be with the Troy Garden Club. They develop and 
maintain beautiful gardens and decorate the Village buildings for 
the winter holidays and we host the “home base” of their Garden 
Walk each July.

Metalsmith Rose Weiss and Watercolor Artist Megan Swoyer 
provided hundreds of hours of combined instruction during 
FYE2023. Through blacksmithing and watercolor classes, students 
of all ages �nd a new way to experience the Village as they learn 
new skills and explore their creativity. Again this year we welcomed 
the reenacting troupe, Bonnets and Crooked Hats, with other 
knowledgeable and skilled reenactors to present a Victorian 
Christmas and Supper with a Soldier events at the Village. These 
programs squarely hit the mission of enabling life-long exploration 
of history through creative, meaningful experiences.

In the spring of 2023, we began working with Zach Merrill, a 
dendroarchaeologist from Michigan Tech, to better understand our 
three oldest buildings. Zach took core samples from the timbers 
in Caswell, the Church, and Niles-Barnard to identify and date the 
trees. Initial results show that the Troy area was much more of a 
microclimate than we anticipated; the frequently �ooded spaces 
affected both the type of trees found in the 1820s and 30s, and 
tree ring growth. With more analysis, we hope to better understand 
when the Niles-Barnard house was built and expanded and con�rm 
the build dates on the Church and Caswell House. We will invite Zach 
back to present his �ndings and offer this presentation to Oakland 
University and Eastern Michigan University students for free. 

COLLABORATIONS & 
COMMUNITY PARTNERS



Phillip & Elizabeth Filmer Memorial 
Charitable Trust

FOUNDATIONS AND GRANTS

ALLISON
F A M I L Y
FOUNDATION

EDUCATION SPONSORS
Kirco
Columbia Center

PROGRAM  SPONSOR                          
Oakmont Senior Communities
Troy Women’s Association
State Farm Insurance – Ann Percy

TRICK OR TREAT 
SPONSORS
Genisys Credit Union
Community Choice Credit Union
Troy Garden Club

EGG HUNT SPONSOR                          
Genisys Credit Union

HOLIDAY EVENTS 
SPONSORS                                                                        
Genisys Credit Union
Troy Garden Club 

HEALTHY LIVING 
INITIATIVES
Corewell Health
Troy Community Foundation

AAA Ice Cream
ALCO Printing
Culver’s – Rochester Hills 

Honey Baked Ham
Mr. Kabob Xpress
Mod Pizza

Nothing Bundt Cakes
Red Robin – Troy
Ridley’s Bakery Café  

Sedona Taphouse
Signs & More
Tim Horton’s – Troy 

The Great Greek
Trevarrow Hardware
Troy Garden Club 

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

A.J. Desmond & Sons 
 Funeral Home
Alexander J Bongiorno 
 Creative Jeweler
Alliance Mobile Health
Alpha Delta Kappa, Alpha 
 Upsilon Chapter
Anthology of Troy Senior Living
BB’s of Troy
Benito’s Pizza of Troy
Berkshire Hathaway Home 
 Service – Susheilla Mehta
C & G Newspapers – Troy Times
Celebrity Catering
Community Choice Credit Union
Crispelli’s Bakery & Pizzeria
Disability Law Group
Fogo de Chao
Genisys Credit Union
Gotta Dance Studios

Green Lantern Pizza Troy
Health Markets - Troy
HOF Law
Home Depot – Troy 
International Diamond Importers
Irma’s Family Farm Fresh 
 Vegetables
Inman Audiology
Jonny Cakes Café
J-RO School of Music
Kurtis Kitchen and Bath
K-Value
La Botana
Lake Michigan Credit Union
Lardner the Gardener
Lincoln of Troy
LKOrthopedics
Madany Dental
Manpower
Mondrian Properties

Mr Kabob Xpress
MSU - Management Education 
 Center
New Century Realtors
Oakland Press
Oakmont Sterling Enhanced 
 Senior Living
Oaxaca
OUR Credit Union
Papa Romanos
PARTNR HAUS
Peppy’s Pizza
Coldwell Banker Weir Manuel – 
 Karen Greenwood
Rexpointe Kennels
Ridley’s Bakery
Rotary Club of Troy
Royal Oak Heating, Cooling & 
 Electrical
Signs & More

Somerset Collection
Sparkle Network
Stage Nature Center (sponsored)
State Farm Insurance – Ann Percy
T&I Credit Union
Telly’s Greenhouse & Garden 
 Center
The Choice Group
Trevarrow Ace Hardware
Tri County Equipment
Troy Chamber of Commerce 
Troy Dental
Troy Fire Department (sponsored)
Troy Garden Club
Troy Law Center
Troy-Metro Agency
Troy Police Department (sponsored)
Troy Public Library
Troy Racquet Club
Troy Sports Center
Troy Youth Soccer

SCARECROW ROW

BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY SPONSORS

Gold Sponsors 
Columbia Center
City of Troy
Troy Downtown Development 
Authority

Silver Sponsor
Kurtis Kitchen & Bath
Meadowbrook Insurance Agency
The Hagerty Group

Copper Sponsors 
Alexander J Bongiorno 
 Creative Jeweler
The Reserve at Red Run
OHM Advisors
The Somerset Collection
Community Choice Credit Union
Stifel/Coastal Financial Strategies
Lincoln of Troy
DiLisio Contracting, Inc.

Aluminum Sponsors
Cadillac Products Automotive 
 Company
Morgan Stanley
Dean & Fulkerson
Lambrecht Realty & Lambrecht 
 Marina
The Cook Group at Merrill Lynch

Chrome Sponsors 
Oakmont Senior Communities
GR Auto Gallery
Troy ESCAPE
CBTS
Campanelli & Pear
Successful Marketing
Lake Michigan Credit Union

TROY TRAFFIC JAM

BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY



INDIVIDUAL DONATIONS

Edna Abrahim
Howard Adams
Mary Lou & Tom Alfes
Andrea Arends
Holly Arida
Paul & Brenda Balas
Dawn Beltowski
Molly Beste
Roopashree Bindiganavile
Dona Bonino
Rita Borraccio
Mike & Pam Brady
Doug Brooks
Jo Bruce-Shekeruk
Jessica Burke
Loraine Campbell
Terri Carter
Trudy & Reinhart Chisholm
Tonya Chisholm
Pamela Claps
Sandra Clark
Craig Cole
Thomas Cook & Marie 

Masters
Richard Coon
Kendra Corman
Jim & Lois Cyruleski
Dennis & Carolyn Darch
Bill & Wendy Davy
Barbara Dawson
Andrea DeFrains
Smita Desai
Megan Dimmer
Michele Dungjen
Ivana & Kevin Enright
Aditya Ezhuthachan
Tracey Fenolio
Faith Fitzpatrick
Sue & David Ford
Traci Garnett
Janet Garrett
Patricia Gates
Frank Gerstenecker
Richard Golding
Danielle & Mathew Golling
Cheryl Gonda
Earl Gravlin & Julia 

Sullivan

David Grocki
Sandy Gunderson
Rick Hall
Russell Harrington
Kristen Hartig
Patricia Hartner
Mary Hatala
Stephen Hat�eld
Ken & Cindy Heck
Chris Herrick
Shirley Hull
Judy & Bruce Iceman
Leila Janssens
Jim & Joan Jarrait
Paul Jeden
Aly Johnson-Hill
Elizabeth & Roger Kaniarz
Jagdish Karira & Varsha 

Karamchandani
Ruth Kell
Joe & Donna Killewald
Marlene Klebba & Louis 

LaFave
Rosemary Kornacki
Jennette Kotila
Karen & John Kraft 

Karavias
Dennis & Dianne Kramer
Kerry Krivoshein
Ponon Kumar
Padma Kuppa & Sudhakar 

Tadepalli
Florita Kurtenbach
Gerald Laber
Jeff Lambrecht
Margaret Langni
Wayne LaPrise
Alyson Lauer
John & Sue Lavender
Barb Layman
Molly Leighton
Christal Lewandowski
Lynn LiCavoli
Kevin & Susan Lindsey
Anna & Phil Lloyd
Phil MacGowan
Susan Manauis
Jillian Mast

Kay McFarland
Tim & Julie McGee
Harry McLean
Verna & James 

Meinershagen
Shari & Bob Mertz
Ken & Aleta Meskin
Catherine Mishark
Rocco Mistretta
John & Robin Mitchell
Geri Musial
Paul & Tamara Myles
Katie Neal
Maryann Neimeister
Cathy & Andrew OGawa
Mary O’Neill
Shirley Page
Anne Partlan
Karen & Donald Patterson
John Paul
Jen & Jeremy Peters
Amanda Petz
Dina Poli
Diane Preslow
JoAnn & Bob Preston
Chloe Price
Candice Purgatori
John Ragan
Ward Randol
Eric Reno
Helen & David Rieland
Gail & Elmer Rinke
Kristine Rose
Ida Rubino

David Ruby
Allen Salyer
Mary Schoenherr
Mark Shaw
Robin & Robert Siegel
Chris & Michelle Slaviero
Therese Stacy
Frances Stage
Janet & Rick Stan�eld
Jeanne Stine
Donna & Ron Stork
Kathy Tenney
Nancy Thompson
Rosemary Tinetti
Madeleine Tohme
Blythe Tyler
Nancie VanderBeke
Jane VanDyke
Barbara Virzi
Fred Wasserman
Zola & LaVere Webster
John Weisgerber
Joy & Frank Wong
Pat Yakubison
Sarah Yates
Mike Yocum
Gerry Young & Linda 

Luedeman
Deborah Zupancic
Todd & Diane 

Zygmontowicz



Our volunteers have been back in full force during FYE2023. 
Covid restrictions kept us from many of our regular volunteering 
activities and fully interacting with volunteers. We also went 
through a period without a dedicated Volunteer Coordinator 
which, while necessary for maintaining a budget during dif�cult 
times, had noticeable effects on our connection with volunteers. 
With our new coordinator in place for more than a year now, 
we have reintroduced regular volunteer meetings, improved 
communications with volunteers, and gotten to know the 
various skills and interests of those spending their valuable time 
with us. 

Volunteers supported the Village and staff by engaging the 
public, supporting operations, and preserving our resources. In 
FYE2023 volunteers ran various activities at our Trick-or-Treat, 
Cocoa & Crafts, and Egg Hunt events, warmly welcomed and 
checked in guests, and even completed training to become tour 
guides. Volunteers prepped school supplies and craft projects, 
put together Village mailings, and helped sort through a backlog 
of Village �les. Some volunteers offered their skills and expertise 
around the Village as they �xed small issues, built specialty 
items for programs, or maintained stunning gardens. 

Volunteers are also active in our fundraising activities. It takes 
around 100 volunteers each year to pull off the Troy Traf�c Jam. 
From setup and car registration to parking cars, guiding visitors, 
counting ballots, and welcoming guests, we couldn’t pull off the 
show without our volunteers. Volunteers request prizes for the 
Summer Raf�e from more than 30 businesses, then assemble 
them into themed baskets. And without volunteers, we couldn’t 
make Scarecrow Row happen! They solicit business sponsors, 
build more than half of the scarecrows on the row, and assist 
in setting up and tearing down. Pro�ts from these fundraisers 
were an important part of the successful FYE2023 budget. 

VOLUNTEERS

Volunteers contributed a total of 4,652 
hours of time to Village programs and 
operations support. 287



Updating the Master Plan in FYE2023 was a crucial step in improving usage of the Village. We are grateful to the City for 
their � nancial support and insight during the process! To quote directly from the plan: “The Troy Historic Village Master Plan 
project places a strong emphasis on improving accessibility and enhancing the overall visitor experience. By strategically 
addressing signage, parking, circulation, and the placement of key facilities, the plan aims to create a more inviting and 
engaging environment for all visitors.” Key points include: 

• Prominent Entrance Signage and Increased Visibility • Improved Parking and Visual Continuity
• Enhanced Visitor Circulation and Connectivity • Relocation of the Log Cabin and New Visitor Center
• Expanded Flexible Use of Outdoor Spaces • Permanent Outdoor Space at Existing Buildings
• Multi-Use Covered Outdoor Space at the Visitor Center • Enhancements to Way� nding, Signage, and Exhibits

We are particularly excited about the possibility of our two biggest identi� ed projects: a new Visitor Center and a redesigned 
and expanded parking lot. A new Visitor Center would enable us to have a central and clearly visible entry point for all 
visitors. School children could start their orientation in the Visitor Center and leave their lunches, exiting to their programs in 
various buildings, and returning to eat together in one space. Staff would have more control over Village access and a Visitor 
Center would offer additional � exible space for programs and events. 

Moving most of the of� ces from our current Main Building would enable us to use the Old City Hall to tell the story of Troy 
from 1927 to today. This exciting time in Troy’s history includes the important story of immigration and modernization—it will 
help us explain how Troy looks the way it does today! The projected parking lot expansion will be limited by space but will 
improve visitor � ow and safety while improving the visual impact of the Village. Both projects are projected to be more than 
one million dollars. THS looks forward to working with the City on creative funding ideas that would make them, and other 
Master Plan projects, attainable.

LOOKING FORWARD 

Overall Site Master Plan
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Board of Directors of 
Troy Historical Society  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Troy Historical Society (a not-for-profit organization), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Troy Historical Society as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Troy Historical Society and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Troy Historical Society's ability to continue as a going 
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

1



 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Troy 
Historical Society's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about Troy Historical Society's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 

 

 

November 9, 2023 
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2023 2022

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 179,477$              200,439$              

Restricted cash 7,703                    11,853                  

Receivables:

Accounts 605                       1,750                    

Grants 19,383                  7,275                    

Inventory 4,842                    7,982                    

Prepaid expenses 3,844                    3,273                    

Total Current Assets 215,854                232,572                

 Property and Equipment

Office equipment 40,215                  41,160                  

Total Cost 40,215                  41,160                  

Less accumulated depreciation (39,464)                (39,909)                

Property and Equipment - Net 751                       1,251                    

 Investments (Note 2) 418,311                396,800                

Other Assets

Beneficial Interest in Assets Held 

at Community Foundation (Note 6) 5,000                    5,000                    

Total Assets 639,916$              635,623$              

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 227$                     3,669$                  

Accrued expenses 24,242                  13,741                  

Rental deposits payable -                       7,000                    

Deferred revenue 54,928                  33,308                  

Total Current Liabilities 79,397                  57,718                  

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions

Undesignated 134,505                566,052                

Board Designated (Note 4) 418,311                -                       

With donor restrictions 7,703                    11,853                  

Total Net Assets 560,519                577,905                

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 639,916$              635,623$              

Troy Historical Society

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

3See notes to financial statements.



Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor
Revenue and Other Support Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Program and operational activities 239,561$       -$                   239,561$       155,782$       67$                155,849$       

Local government support (Note 5) 106,000         -                     106,000         106,000         -                     106,000         

Donations and grants 78,169           -                     78,169           108,545         -                     108,545         

Donations - bequests -                 -                     -                 438,712         -                     438,712         

Donations - endowment (Note 4) 18,300           -                     18,300           -                 -                     -                 

Fundraising events 51,639           -                     51,639           44,426           -                     44,426           

Membership 12,950           -                     12,950           13,805           -                     13,805           

Merchandise sales 9,404             -                     9,404             12,028           -                     12,028           

In-kind (Note 7) 6,446             -                     6,446             2,933             -                     2,933             

Net assets released from restrictions 4,150             (4,150)            -                 7,686             (7,686)            -                 

Total Revenue and Other Support 526,619         (4,150)            522,469         889,917         (7,619)            882,298         

Operating Expenses

Program activities 287,665         -                     287,665         264,471         -                     264,471         

Management and general 189,657         -                     189,657         171,191         -                     171,191         

Fundraising 86,991           -                     86,991           59,886           -                     59,886           

Total Expenses 564,313         -                     564,313         495,548         -                     495,548         

Excess of Operational Revenue

 over Operating Expenses (37,694)          (4,150)            (41,844)          394,369         (7,619)            386,750         

Other Changes in Net Assets

Investment income (loss) - Net (Note 3) 24,911           -                     24,911           (41,912)          -                     (41,912)          
Other income (loss) (453)               -                     (453)               285                -                     285                

Total Other Changes in Net Assets 24,458           -                     24,458           (41,627)          -                     (41,627)          

Change in Net Assets (13,236)          (4,150)            (17,386)          352,742         (7,619)            345,123         

Net Assets - Beginning of year 566,052         11,853           577,905         213,310         19,472           232,782         

Net Assets - End of year 552,816$       7,703$           560,519$       566,052$       11,853$         577,905$       

Troy Historical Society

Statement of Activities and Changes In Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

See notes to financial statements. 4



Program 
Activities 

Management 
and General Fundraising Total

Salaries and wages 214,603$          136,920$          48,000$            399,523$            

Professional Fees 45,665              16,019              1,317                63,001             

Advertising and promotion 4,526                2,732                26,619              33,877             

Supplies 12,886              6,999                9,508                29,393             

Telephone and internet 6,884                10,417              -                    17,301             

Bank service charges 440                   4,318                -                    4,758               

Insurance -                    4,297                -                    4,297               

Equipment rental 600                   1,484                -                    2,084               

Transportation 800                   13                     300                   1,113               

Depreciation -                    499                   -                    499                  

Miscellaneous 1,261                5,959                1,247                8,467               

Total Expenses 287,665$          189,657$          86,991$            564,313$            

Troy Historical Society

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2023

5See notes to financial statements.



Program 
Activities 

Management 
and General Fundraising Total

Salaries and wages 191,168$          121,886$          45,272$            358,326$            

Professional Fees 36,056              25,735              144                   61,935             

Advertising and promotion 4,878                1,685                12,817              19,380             

Supplies 19,782              2,195                1,553                23,530             

Telephone and internet 3,088                10,819              -                    13,907             

Bank service charges 1,393                2,744                -                    4,137               

Insurance -                    4,258                -                    4,258               

Equipment rental 1,465                1,075                100                   2,640               

Transportation 493                   -                    -                    493                  

Depreciation 149                   444                   -                    593                  

Miscellaneous 5,999                350                   -                    6,349               

Total Expenses 264,471$          171,191$          59,886$            495,548$            

Troy Historical Society

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2022

6See notes to financial statements.



2023 2022

Cash flows from Operating Activities: 

Change in net assets (17,386)$          345,123$         

Depreciation 500                  593                  

Disposal of equipment -                       5,926               

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (24,911)            45,480             

Accounts and grants receivable (10,963)            3,025               

Donated investments -                       (438,712)          

Donated investments - endowment (18,300)            -                       

Inventory 3,140               1,181               

Prepaid expenses (571)                 (581)                 

Accounts payable (3,442)              3,313               

Accrued expenses 10,501             (274)                 

Rental deposits payable (7,000)              3,250               

Deferred revenue 21,620             8,020               

Net cash used in operating activities (46,812)            (23,656)            

Cash flows from Investing Activities:

Investment in beneficial interest in assets

held at Community Foundation -                       (5,000)              

Proceeds from sale of investments 21,700             36,684             

Net cash provided by investing activities 21,700             31,684             

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (25,112)            8,028               

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year 212,292           204,264           

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 187,180$         212,292$         

Statement of Financial Position Classification of Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 179,477$         200,439$         

Cash for restricted purposes 7,703               11,853             

Total cash and cash equivalents 187,180$         212,292$         

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
that provided (used) cash:

Troy Historical Society

Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash from operating activities:

7See notes to financial statements.



Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 
Note 1 – Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Organization 
 
Troy Historical Society (the Organization) is tax exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code as an organization that is not a private foundation. The Organization’s mission is to 
engage the community and enable life-long exploration of history by sharing and preserving its stories, artifacts, 
and buildings through creative, meaningful experiences. The Organization’s vision is to enhance knowledge and 
historic context through the resources and activities centered at the Troy Historic Village. The Organization 
provides opportunities for community development, social interaction, and open dialogue on issues of importance. 
The Organization enriches lives by connecting its experiences of the past to one another. The Organization was 
formed in order to foster and encourage the collection and preservation of historical artifacts and to study and 
conduct historical research. It has grown from this foundation of preservation to preservation and education. The 
Organization is located in Troy, Michigan. 
 
The City of Troy has a contract with the Organization that allows the Organization to operate, manage, and use 
the Troy Historic Village and its buildings for the purpose of the Organization’s mission. See Note 5. 
 
Nature of Activities 
 
The Organization develops and offers history-related public educational programs to children and families, school 
fieldtrips, and senior citizens. The Organization operates the Historic Village and works with the City of Troy to 
maintain the accompanying buildings and artifacts. Fees are charged for most educational and group-taught 
programs. Other sources of income include local government support, donations, fundraising events, and special-
event rentals. 

 
Basis of Presentation 

 
The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net 
assets that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed there by its donors: net 
assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 
 
Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor 
restrictions.  The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting from 
the nature of the Organization, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate 
documents and its application for tax-exempt status and any limits resulting from contractual agreements with 
creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions.  Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.  
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, such as those that the donor stipulates that resources 
be maintained in perpetuity. 

 

Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less 
when purchased are considered cash equivalents and recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.   
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Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 
Note 1 – Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Accounts and Grants Receivable 

 
The Organization considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively; 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be charged 
to operations when that determination is made.  

 
Grants and contributions are recognized at fair value as revenues in the period in which there is sufficient 
evidence that an unconditional promise was received. Conditional promises are recognized when the conditions 
on which they depend are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected 
within one year are recorded at their net realizable value. The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated 
based upon historical collection rates and specific identification of uncollectible amounts. As of June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively, there were no allowances required for grants receivable.  
 
Inventory 
 
The Organization maintains an inventory of books, posters, and other mission related products, purchased for 
resale, that are sold in The Village Store. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market.  
 
Property and Equipment  

 
Property and equipment is carried at cost or, if donated, at fair market value at the time of donation.  Depreciation 
is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 27.5 years.  The Organization’s policy is 
to capitalize acquisitions of $2,500 or more.  For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, depreciation expense 
was $500 and $593, respectively.  
 
Investments 

 

Investments for which market quotations are readily available are valued at the quoted market price.   
 
Deferred Revenue 
 
Deferred revenue consists of advances for future programs, events, rentals, and grants. The Organization 
recognizes revenue once the program, event, or rental has concluded. Grants are recognized in conjunction with 
agreement terms when any imposed conditions have been met.  
 
Revenue and Other Support 
 
Contributions of cash and other assets, including unconditional promises to give in the future, are reported as 
revenue when received and are measured at fair value. The Organization receives support in the form of local 
government, corporate, and individual grants and contributions.  Management has determined that these grants 
and contributions are from arrangements for which there is no commensurate benefit provided to the resource 
providers. Therefore, all of this support is considered to be contribution revenue. Contributions that are restricted 
by the donor are reported as an increase in net assets without donor restriction if the restriction expires in the 
reporting period in which the contributions are recognized. Contributions with donor-imposed time or purpose 
restrictions are reported as support with donor restrictions.  All other contributions are reported as support without 
donor restrictions.   
 
Unconditional promises to give with payments due in future periods are assumed to have an implicit time 
restriction. Those restrictions are released as contributions when collected or when allocations or grants are made 
to recipient organizations based on those future collections. Conditional promises to give are recognized only 
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met and the promises become unconditional. There 
were no conditional promises to give recognized as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

9



Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 
Note 1 – Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Revenue and Other Support (Continued) 
 
The Organization offers program related experiences where the performance obligation is delivery of the program. 
Fees for these programs are based on the type of program and the number of participants in each program.  
These revenues are treated as exchange transactions and are recognized as revenue after delivery of the 
program has occurred.  
 
The Organization conducts special fundraising events in which the gross proceeds paid by the sponsor represent 
contribution revenue to the Organization as there is no admission fee for participants or spectators for these types 
of events. The Organization also conducts special fundraising events in which the gross proceeds paid by the 
participant represents payment for the direct benefits received by the participant at the event. The performance 
obligation is delivery of the event, and revenue is recognized after the event has taken place. Funds received in 
excess of proceeds paid by participants for these events would represent contribution revenue to the 
Organization. There were no proceeds deemed to be contributions at any of these types of events for the years 
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  

 
Contributed Services 
 
The Organization pays for most services requiring specific expertise. However, many individuals donate their time 
in performing a variety of tasks to assist the Organization’s operations. The donated hours and value of these 
contributed services have not been included in these financial statements, as they do not meet the criteria for 
recognition and were estimated for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 to be 4,652 hours and 4,280 hours 
valued at approximately $147,934 and $124,116, respectively. 
 
Concentrations of Credit Risk 

 
The Organization derives most of its revenues from local government support, donations, and various fundraising 
events. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, local government support was approximately 20% and 12% 
of total revenues, respectively. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
Costs of providing the program, management and general, and fundraising services have been reported on a 
functional basis in the statement of functional expenses. The financial statements report certain categories of 
expenses that are attributable to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses 
required allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Depreciation is allocated on the basis of the 
program or support service that uses the fixed asset. Costs have been allocated between the various programs 
and support services based on estimates determined by management. Although the methods of allocation used 
are considered appropriate, other methods could be used that would produce different amounts. 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for 
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which was issued in order to improve transparency in the reporting of 
contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in -kind, for not-for-profit organizations. The new guidance is 
effective for the Organization’s year-ended June 30, 2022. See Note 7. 

 
Subsequent Events 
 
The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and including November 
9, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.                                     

10



Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1)
Balance at 

June 30, 2022

Investments:

Money market funds 15,766$                15,766$                  

Fixed income securities 160,550                160,550                  

Equity securities 220,484                220,484                  

Total investments at fair value 396,800$               396,800$                

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a 
Recurring Basis at 

June 30, 2022

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1)
Balance at 

June 30, 2023

Investments:

Money market funds 21,760$                21,760$                  

Fixed income securities 271,589                271,589                  

Equity securities 124,962                124,962                  

Total investments at fair value 418,311$               418,311$                

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a 
Recurring Basis at 

June 30, 2023

Note 2 – Fair Value Measurement 
 

Fair Value Measurement 
 
Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the financial statements and 
provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The framework for determining fair value is based on a 
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  
 
Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the 
Organization has the ability to access. Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are 
observable, either directly or indirectly. These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active 
markets and other inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted 
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations where there is 
little, if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair value measurements are based primarily on 
management's own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques 
taking into account the characteristics of the asset.  
 
In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, 
fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
valuation. The Organization's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements 
requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.  
 
The following tables present information about the Organization’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and the valuation techniques used by the Organization to 
determine those fair values: 
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Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 

2023 2022

Interest and dividends 9,900$        3,568$        

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 15,011        (45,480)       

Total 24,911$      (41,912)$     

Changes in Endowment 
Net Assets for the Year 
Ended June 30, 2023

Without Donor 
Restrictions

Board designated endowment funds - Beginning of Year -$                               

Board designation of 2022 bequests 396,800                          

Investment return:

Investment income 9,900                             

Net appreciation (realized and unrealized) 15,011                            

Total Investment return 24,911                            

Contributions 18,300                            

Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (21,700)                           

Board designated endowment funds - End of Year 418,311$                        

Note 2 – Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 
 

Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, investment funds were donated to the Organization, and this donation is 
included within Donations – Bequests on the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. As of June 30, 
2022, the investments had a fair value of $396,800. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the donated funds 
were reorganized into a Troy Historical Society Board Designated Endowment. The fair value of the board 
designated endowment was $418,311 as of June 30, 2023. See Note 4 for the board designated endowment.  

 
Note 3 – Investment Income 

 
Investment income (loss) is composed of the following for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Note 4 – Board Designated Endowment 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, investment funds were donated to the Organization in the form of a 
bequest with no donor restrictions. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the investment funds were reorganized 
into a Troy Historical Society Board Designated Endowment. The Organization’s goal of this endowment is to 
support operations of the Troy Historic Village as the Board of Directors and management deems most beneficial. 
The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
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Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 

Description 2023 2022

Advertising, promotional services, and sponsorship 1,550$        758$           

Village and program supplies (items include but are not limited to round tables, 
presentation folders, baking supplies, prize baskets for fundraisers) 4,896          2,175          

Total 6,446$        2,933$        

Note 5 – City of Troy 
 
Effective in March 2011, the City of Troy approved an operational agreement with the Organization to operate the 
Troy Historic Village located in Troy, Michigan, which allows the Organization non-exclusive use of the property. 
The agreement was renewed on July 1, 2016, and it expires on June 30, 2026. 
 
In conjunction with this agreement, the City of Troy includes the Organization in its annual budget within the City’s 
Recreation and Culture Department for building and ground routine maintenance as well as annual appropriations 
out of its General Fund for Organization operations, insurance, and operations-related maintenance and utilities. 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the City of Troy provided the Organization with appropriations for 
organizational operations in the amounts of $106,000, respectively. The appropriations are recorded as Local 
Government Support on the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022.  
 

Note 6 – Community Foundation Endowment 
 

Effective December 1, 2017, The Organization established an endowment agreement with North Woodward 
Community Foundation (the Community Foundation) by an irrevocable transfer of funds in the amount of $5,000 
to the Community Foundation. The purpose of the endowment is to provide support to the Organization in its 
operating and management of the Troy Historic Village, owned by the City of Troy, as directed by the Community 
Foundation. The Community Foundation has the power to retain, invest, and reinvest the assets of the 
endowment to further the charitable or other exempt purposes of the Organization. The Community Foundation 
also has variance power over the endowment in that the Community Foundation’s principles and procedures for 
advised funds provide that the commitments, grants, or expenditures from the funds shall be made to the 
Organization at such time or times and in such amount or amounts as determined by the Community Foundation. 
If the Organization ceases to operate and manage the Troy Historic Village, the endowment fund would continue 
to provide support to the Troy Historic Village by distributions to the next operator of the Troy Historic Village. 
 
Annually, the Organization can request five percent of the average endowment fund balance of the preceding four 
quarters in the form of a distribution. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the North Woodward Community Foundation 
reported an approximate fair value of $32,767 and $30,323, respectively, for the endowment fund. As of June 30, 
2023 and 2022, a request for distribution has not been made by the Organization.  
 

Note 7 – In-kind Donations 
 

The Organization received various in-kind donations for its programs and in support of the Organization in 
general. The in-kind donations were used during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and there were no 
donor-imposed restrictions associated with the contributed non-financial assets. Fair value of the contributed non-
financial assets was determined based on the market value cost of a given item or service. In-kind donations for 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 
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Troy Historical Society 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       June 30, 2023 and 2022 

 
Note 8 – Liquidity and Availability of Financial Resources 

 
The Organization has $207,168 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position 
date to meet cash needs for general expenditure consisting of cash and cash equivalents and receivables. None 
of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general 
expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position date with the exception of $7,703 to be used for 
donor restricted purposes. The Organization has a goal to maintain financial assets, which consist of cash and 
cash equivalents and receivables, on hand to meet 60 days of normal operating expenses, which are, on average 
approximately $83,000.  The Organization has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its 
general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.   
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Beth L Tashnick

Subject: FW: Feedback on Troy Rec Staff

 

From: Janet Gole  
Sent: Saturday, February 24, 2024 8:01 PM 
To: Brian Goul  
Subject: Feedback on Troy Rec Staff 

 

Brian 
I am a resident of Troy, and have attended many classes from Troy 
Recreation.  I was interested in the Grand Experience travel trip, 
but could not register or pay in person.  Both my sister (a non-
resident) and I discussed and worked with Lyndsey Ramsay and 
Corey Clark.  Lyndsey provided my sister and I online reservation 
forms, answered many questions at the Community Center (from 
my sister), and me via phone and email. She notified the desk staff 
that my sister would arrive, to accept our paperwork and pay the 
deposit.  On non-resident registration day, Cory helped us register, 
confirming we were successfully registered.  He not only sent us 
email confirmations, but also phoned my sister directly.     
 
Too many times, management only receives complaints, not much 
positive feedback. Sending our positive feedback on two great Troy 
Rec employees.  Thanks again.  Contact me if you have any 
questions.    
 
‐‐  
Cheers,  
Janet L. Gole 
 
 

O-03a
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Standard Purchasing Resolution #1:  Award to Low Bidder for Contract No. 23-07 Elliott Water Main Replacement – Project No. 23.501.5



RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby Awards Contract No. 23-07, Elliott Water Main Replacement, to F.D.M. Contracting, Inc., 49156 Van Dyke, Shelby Twp., MI 48317, for their low base bid of $1,879,258.00.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount not to exceed 15% of the total project cost.

[bookmark: _GoBack]


















































































STANDARD PURCHASING RESOLUTION 2 – Award to Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Transit Mixed Concrete

[bookmark: _GoBack]RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidder meeting specifications; Daytona Redi-Mix of Shelby Township, MI as the primary supplier and Superior Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI as the secondary supplier as per the unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 15, 2024, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting, to be ordered on as needed basis; contracts expiring April 30, 2026.



BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.




STANDARD PURCHASING RESOLUTION 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Community Planning Services



WHEREAS, On February 22, 2021, Troy City Council awarded a three (3) year contract to provide Community Planning and Related Services for the City of Troy to the best value bidder, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., with the option to renew for two (2) additional years; contract expiring on March 31, 2024.  (Resolution #2021-02-027); and



WHEREAS The City of Troy determined that Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. successfully provided Community Planning and Related Services to the City as per all terms and conditions of the existing contract; and



WHEREAS, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. offered to renew their contract for two (2) years under the same terms and conditions as the 2021 contract; and



WHEREAS The City of Troy has determined that Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. continues to successfully provided Community Planning and Related Services to the City as per all terms and conditions of the existing contract and has offered to exercise the two-year renewal option;



[bookmark: _GoBack]THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby determines it to be in City’s best interest to APPROVE the option to exercise the two year renewal with the contract expiring March 31, 2026 upon mutual consent of both parties and successful performance of the contract with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. for Community Planning and Related Services under the same terms and conditions of SOQ-COT 21-16, the contract dated April 1, 2021, the Agreement Extension provided by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. dated January 30, 2024 and revised Attachment 1; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of contract documents and all other specified requirements.










STANDARD PURCHASING RESOLUTION 4: Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract – Pump Replacement at the Troy Community Center Pool

[bookmark: _GoBack]RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to Limbach, Inc. of Pontiac, MI for replacement of the three pumps at the Troy Community Center Pool for an estimated cost of $94,991, as detailed in the attached proposal and as per the Oakland County Extended Purchasing Contract #009746, not to exceed budgetary limitations. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements






[bookmark: _Hlk64292695]Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative – 2024 Sewer Root Treatment 



[bookmark: _GoBack]RESOLVED, That in the best interest of the City, Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to Duke’s, 1020 Hiawatha Blvd., West | Syracuse, NY 13204 to furnish all labor, materials and equipment to provide sewer root treatment for an estimated cost of $145,939.08 at the prices detailed in the proposal and per the HGACBuy Purchasing Cooperative Contract #SC01-21; not to exceed budgetary limitations.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.








[bookmark: _GoBack]Approval of Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) for the proposed Tuscan Villas Lot Split, Project No. 22.914.3



RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mr. Frank Mancini for the installation of: Water Main, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, Concrete Pavement & Sidewalk, and Rain Garden, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.






















Act 51 Resolution





Suggested Resolution

Resolution #2024-XX



WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the state of Michigan for the purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and,



WHEREAS, The center line of said street is described as:



(Kohli Drive) Part of the Southeast ¼ of Section 27, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.  The centerline of road being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the South ¼ Corner of said Section 27; thence South 89 degrees 36 minutes 29 seconds East, along the East and West ¼ Line of said Section 27, 1265.28 feet and North 12 degrees 17 minutes 04 seconds East 1132.75 feet and South 77 degrees 42 minutes 56 seconds East 50.00 feet to the centerline of Rochester Road and the point of beginning of the centerline of Kohli; thence North 77 degrees 42 minutes 56 seconds West 99.62 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius of 50.50 feet, a length of 68.73 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 38 degrees 43 minutes 23 seconds West 63.55 feet; thence North 00 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds East 670.10 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius of 39.00 feet, a length of 61.26 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 15 minutes 20 seconds East 55.15 feet; thence South 89 degrees 45 minutes 21 seconds East 147.24 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius of 230.00 feet, a length of 50.93 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 83 degrees 24 minutes 41 seconds East 50.83 feet; thence South 77 degrees 04 minutes 00 seconds East 63.95 feet to the centerline of Rochester Road and the point of ending of said road. Said centerline of road is 1,161.83 feet in length more or less.



[bookmark: _GoBack]WHEREAS, the above said street is located within the City of Troy; right of way is under the control of the City of Troy; said street is public street and is for public street purposes and was open to the public prior to December 31, 2023;



THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the following non-platted street: Kohli Drive into the City of Troy local street system.



Yes:

No:


Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes – February 21, 2024



4. Request for Traffic Control – Hearthside Drive & Country Ridge Drive  



[bookmark: _Hlk154480618]RESOLVED, that the County Ridge Drive Approach at Hearthside Drive be MODIFIED from UNCONTROLLED, to STOP CONTROLLED.































[bookmark: _GoBack]GSF/G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2024\02_February 21\City Council\20240117 Suggested Resolution_Traffic Committee.docx




REQUEST TO GRANT AN UNDERGROUND UTILITY EASEMENT OVER A CITY OWNED PROPERTY TO DTE ELECTRIC COMPANY, SIDWELL #88-20-22-301-011


Resolution #2024-03-

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby GRANTS an undergound easement to DTE Electric Company over the City of Troy owned property identified by Sidwell #88-20-22-301-011, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DIRECTS the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the easement document on behalf of the City.  


REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT FROM SHEKHOR DEB, SIDWELL #88-20-12-426-024

Resolution #2024-03

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS a permanent easement for storm sewers and surface drainage Shekhor Deb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-12-426-024, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the permanent easement with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.



